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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 June 2009

STATEMENT BY COUNCILLORS AND MANAGEMENT
MADE PURSUANT TO SECTION 413 (2)(c)
OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1893 (as amended)

The attached Annual Financial Statements have been drawn up in accordance with

» The Local Government Act 1993 (as amended} and the Regulations made thereunder

¢ The Australian Accounting Standards and professional pronoungements

s The Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Finangial Reporting

To the best of our knowledge and belief, these reports

» Present fairly the Council's financlal position and operating resuit for the year, and

¢ Accord with Council's accounting and other records

We are not aware of any matter that would render the reports false or misleading in any way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 28 September 2008

~“Councillor R. Filmer
MAYOR

Mr T. P. O'Connor (Chartered Accountant)
GENERAL MANAGER

uncillor R. Spreadborough
DEPUTY MAYOR

Mr T. P. O'Conner (Chartered Accountant)
RESPONSIBLE ACCOUNTING OFFICER
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Budget
2009
$'000

4,026
1,434
381
227
7,683
1,217

487
15,465

6,097
3,861

123
1,900
1,276

13,257

2,198

2,198

2,198

981

URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

INCOME STATEMENT
for the year ended 30th June 2009

INCOME

Revenue:

Rales & Annual Charges

User Charges & Fees

Investment Revenues

Other Revenues

Grants & Contributions - Operating
Grants & Contributions - Capltal
Other Income:

Profit from Disposal of Assels

Total Income from Continuing Operations

EXPENSES

Employee Cosls

Materials & Contracts
Borrowing Costs

Depraciation & Amortisation
Impairment

Other Expenses

Interest and investment losses

Total expenses from Continulng Operations

NET OPERATING RESULT FOR YEAR

Attributable to:
URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

Net operating resuit before capital grants and

contributions

Actual Actual

2009 2008

Notes $°000 $'000
3 3,743 3,700
3 1,944 2,483
3 197 -
3 276 216
a 8,230 7,155
3 1,256 681
5 457 121
16,103 14,356
4 6,219 6,332
4 3,979 4,280
4 153 144
4 1,505 1,838
4 = -
4 1,219 1,091
3 - 418
13,075 14,112
3,026 244
3,028 244
$ 3,028 % 244
£ 1,772 % (437)

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes.
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

BALANCE SHEET
as at 30th June 2009

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash & cash equivalenis
Investments

Receivables

Inventories

Other

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Recelvables

Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables

Borrowings

Provisions

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings

Provisions

TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Accumulated Surplus
Revalualion Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

Actual Actual

2009 2008

Notes $'000 $'000
& 1,454 2,216
6 5412 3,078
7 1,397 1,168
8 187 168
8 106 92
8,556 6,722
7 - 106
] 276,251 103,118
278,251 103,224
284,807 109,946
10 3,191 2,850
10 209 1,047
10 1,159 1,375

4,559 5272

10 1,816 845
10 1,003 752
2,819 1,597
7,378 6,869
$ 277,429 103,077
20 66,543 77,132
20 210,886 25,945
$ 277,429 103,077

This Statement is to be read In conjunction with the attached Notes
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 30th June 2009

Balance at beginning of Lhe reporling
period

Transfers to/{from) Asset Revalualion
Reserve

Other adjustments

Net movements recognised directly in
equity

Net Operating Resull for the year

Tolal recognised income and expense for
the year

Balance at end of the reporting period

Effact of correction of errors In previous years
on relained earnings

Effect of accounting policy changes on
relained earmings

2009 2008
$'000 $'000
Asset . Assel
Rata!ned Reval. Total Rela!ned Reval. Total
Earnings Eamings
Reserve Reserve
Nole
77,132 | 25,945 | 103,077 74912 | 16458 | 91,370
20 - | 184,941 | 184,941 - 9,487 9,487
13.617) = | (13,017} 1,976 - 1,976
(13,617)) 184,941 | 171,324 1,976 9,487 | 11,463
3,028 3,028 | 244 244
(10,588)| 134,941 | 174,352 2,220 9487 | 11,707
66,543 | 210,886 | 277,429 77132 | 25945 | 103,077
20 | (13,617) -| (361n 1976 - 1,976

This Statementl is to be read In conjunction wilh the atached Notss
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Budgst
2009
$'000

4,026
1,434
381

8,900
227

(6,097)
(3,861)
(123)

(1,276)
3,611

487

(4,004)

(3.517)

(208)

206
(112)

2,216
2,104

URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 30th June 2009

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Noles
Receipts

Rates & Annual Charges

User Charges & Fees

Invesiments Income

Grants & Contribulions

Other operating receipts
Payments

Employee Costs

Materials & Contracts

Borrowing Costs

Other operating payments
Net Cash provided by (or used in) Operating
Actlvities 11

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Receipts

Proceeds from sale of Infrastructure, Property, Plant &
Equlprnent

Proceeds from sale of Investmant Securities
Paymenis

Purchase of Infrastructure, Property, Plant &
Equipment

Purchase of Investment Securities
Net Cash provided by (or used in) Investing
Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipls

Proceeds from Bormowings & Advances

Proceeds from Retirement Home Cantributions
Payments

Repaymenls of Borrowings & Advances

Repayment of Retirement Home Confributions
Net Cash provided by {or used in) Financing
Actlvities
Net Increase (Decrease) in cash held

Cash Assets at beginning of reporting period 11
Cash Assets at end of reporting period 1

Actual Actual
2009 2008
$°000 $'000

3,805 3,658
2,150 2,657
228 362
9,854 8,401
379 153
{6,217) {6,463)
{3,970) (4.427)
(120) {150)
{1,628) (1,278)
4,481 2,813
415 248
200 417
{3,562) {1,170)
(2,625) (915)
(5,572) (1,422}
310 192
108 430
(177) (386)
90 7
329 243
(762) 1,634
2,216 582
1,454 2,216

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2008

Note 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting palicies adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless olherwise slated.

1

1.1

Basis of Preparation

This general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with Australian equivalents to
International Financial Reporting Standards {AIFRSs), other authoritative pronouncemants of the Australian
Accounling Standards Board, Urgent Issues Group Interpretalions, the Local Government Act (1993) and
Regulations and the Lecal Government Coda of Accounting Practice and FInancial Reporting.

AAS 27

The Slandard has been superseded from 1 July 2008. However, all key elements of the former Standard
have been incorporated Into other currenl Standards including AASB 1051, 1052 and 1004.

Historical cost convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of avallable-for-sale financial assets, financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, certaln classes of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment and investment property.

Critical accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with AIFRS requires the use of certain critlcal
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise Its judgement in the process of applying tha
Council's accounling policies,

Revenue recognltion

Revenue is measured at the fair value of Lhe conslderation received or receivable. Revenue s recognised
when the Council obtains conirol over the assets comprising the revenue, or whan the amount becomas an
enforceable debt, whichever first occurs.

Where grants, contributions and donations recognised as revenues during the reporting pericd were
obtained on the condltion that they be expsnded in a particular menner or used over a parlicular period, and
those conditions were undischarged as al the reporting date, lhe amounls subject to those undischarged
conditions are disclosed in these notes as restricted assets. Also disclosed Is the amouni of grants,
contributions and receivables recognised as revenues in a previous raporing period which wera obtained In
respecl of the Council's operations for the current reporting period.

Revenue Is measured on major Income categories as follows:
Rates, annual charges, grants and confributions

Rates, annual charges, grants and contributions (including developer contributlons) are recognised as
revenues when the Councll obtains control over the assets comprising these receipls. Developer
contributions may only be expended for the purposes for which the contributions were required but the
Council may apply contributions according to the priorities established in work schedules.

Control over assets acquired from rates and annual charges is obtained at the commencement of the rating
year as it is an enforceable dabt linked to the raleable property or, where earller, upon receipt of the rates.
A provision for doublful debts on rates has not been established as unpaid rates represent a charge against
the rateable properly that will be recovered when lhe property Is next sold.

Control over granted assets Is normally oblained upon their receipt (or acquittal) or upon earlier notification
that a grant has been secured, and Is valued at their fair value at the date of transfer.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2009

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policles {cont)

1.2

1.3

1.4

Income Is recognlsed when the Council obtains control of the contribulion or the right to receive the
contribution, it is probable thal the economic benefils comprising the contribution will flow to the Council
and the amount of the contribulion can be measured reliably.

Where granis or confribulions recognised as revenues during the financial year were obtained on condition
that lhey be expended in a particular manner or used over a particular period and those conditions wera
undischarged at balance date, the unused grant or contribution Is disclosed in Note 3(g). The note also
discloses the amount of unused grant or contribution from prior years thal was expended on Council's
operallons during the current year.

A liability is recognised in respect of revenue that Is reciprocal in nature to the extent ihat the requisite
service has not been provided at balance dats.

User charges and fees

User charges and fees (including parking fees and fines) are recognised as revenue when the service has
been provided, the payment is received, or when the penally has been applied, whichever first occurs. A
provision for doubtful debt is recognised when collectlon in full is no longer probable.

Sale of plant, properly, infrastructure and equipment
The profit or loss on sale of an asset is determined when control of the assel has Irevocably passed to the
buyer.

Interest and rents

interest and renls are recognised as revenue on a proportional basis when the payment is due, the value of
the payment is notlfied, or the payment is recelved, whichever first occurs,

Compllance with Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards

This general purpose financlal report has been prepared in accordance with Australian equlvalents o
Intemational Financlal Reporting Standards {AIFRS) as they apply to not-for-profit enliies, other
authoritative pronouncements of the Ausiralian Accounting Standards Board, Urgent Issues Group
Interpretalions, the NSW Local Government Act 1993 and regulations thereunder and the Local
Government Code of Accountlng Practice and Financial Reporting.

Historical Cost Conventlon

The financial report has been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and, except where speciftcally
Indicated in these Notes, in accordance with the historical cost convenlion.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparalion of financial statements in conformity with AIFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates, and requires management to exercise its judgement in applying Council's accounting
policles. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or cases where assumplions and
eslimates are significant to the financial statements are specifically referred to in the relevant sections of
this Note. Nothing contained within this report may be taken to be an admission of any llabllity to any
person under any circumstance.

In partlcular, the valuation of collataralised debl obligations (CDOs) is subject to the difficultles set out In
Appendix B to the Review of NSW Local Government Investments (Gole Inquiry Report). Valuations were
provided by the promoters or distributors of the product, and largely represent an estimate of the market
price. The valuations adopted for the purposes of these financial statements is consistent with the
information contained within the Cole Inquiry Reporl and other Informaltion subsequently obtained by
Councll.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2009

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies {cont)

21

The Local Government Reporting Entity

Uralla Shire Councll is Incorporated under the NSW Local Govemment Act 1993 (as amended) and has its
principal place of business at 32 Salisbury Streel, Uralla, NSW 235B. In accordance with the provisions of
Section 409(1) of the LGA 1993, all money and property received by Council is held in the Council's
Consolidated Fund unless it is required to be held in the Council’s Trust Fund. These financial statemenls
include the consolidated fund and other entitles through which the Council controls resources to carry on its
functions. In the pracess of reporting on the Council as a single unit, all iransactions and balances between
activity areas and controlled entitles have been ellminaled.

The following Special Rale funds and Commilttees established pursuant lo the Act are Included:

»  Uralla Shire Water Supply Fund
¥  Uralla Shire Sewerage Fund
» McMaugh Gardens

Other joInt ventures and assaciated entities in which Councl! is involved are included to tha extent set out in
paragraph 13 below and in Nota 19,

The Trust Fund

In accordance with the provisions of Section 411 of the Local Govemment Act 1993 {as amended), a
separate and dislinct Trust Fund Is maintained to account for ail monles and property received by the
Council in trust which must be applled only for the purposes of or in accordance with the trusts relating to
these monles. Trust monles and property subject to Councll's control have been Included in these reports.

Frust monles and property held by Councll but subject to the control of other persons have been excluded
from these reports. A separate statement of moneys held in the Trust Fund is available for Inspeclion at the
Council Office by any person free of charge

Cash Assets and other FInanclal Instruments

Cash Assets Include all amounts readily convertible to cash on hand at Council's option with an insignificant
risk of changes in value with a maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Receivables for rates and annual charges are secured over the subject land, and bear Interesl at rates
determined In accordance wilh the Local Government Act 1993 (as amended) and the Regulations and
Determinations made thereunder. Other recelvables ars generally unsecured and do not bear interest.
Loans made te sporting and community groups at concesslonal inlerest rates are recognised al thelr
nominal amounts; Interest revenuas foregons by the Council effectively bsing a reduction of interest
revenue in the period to which it relates.

All raceivables are reviewed as at the reporting date and adequate allowance made for amounts the raceipt
of which is consldered doubtful.

Recalvabies

Recelvables are recognised initially al fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, Jess
provision for doubtful debts. Recelvables are dua for settlement no mara than 30 days from lhe date of
recognition.

Collectability of recelvables s reviewad on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectible are
writlen off. A provision for doublful receivables is established when there Is objective evidence that the
Council will not be able to collect alt amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. The
amount of the provislon is Lhe difference between the asset's carmrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effeclive interest rate.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2009

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policles {cont)

5.

Inveniories

Inventories held In respect of stores have been valued by using the weighted average cost on a continual
basis, after adjustment for loss of service potential. Inventories held in respect of business undartakings
have been valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value,

Investments and other financlal assets.
Classification

Council classifies its investments in the following categories: financial assets al fair valua through profit or
loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and avallable-for-sale financial assets. The
classificalion depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its investments at initial recognitlon and, in the case of assets classified as held-to-
maturity, re-svaluates this designatlon at each reporting date.

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financlal assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified
as currenl| assets.

(i} Loans and receivables

Loans and recelvables are non-derlvative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are nat
qualed in an aclive market. They ara included in current assets, except for those with maturities greater
than 12 months after the balance sheet date which are classlfied as non-current assets. Loans and
recefvables are inciuded in trade and other receivables in the balance sheet.

(iii) Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity Investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturilies that the Council's management has the posilive intention and ability to hold to maturity. If
Council were to sall olher than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity financial assets, tha whole
category would be tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale. Held-to-maturity financial assels are
included in non-current assets, excepl for those wilh maturities less than 12 months from the reporting date,
which are classified as current assels.

(iv} Available-for-sale financial assels

Available-for-sale financial assets, comprising principally marketable squity securilies, are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this categery or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included
In non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the Investment within 12 months of the
balance sheet date. Investments are designated as avallable-for-sale If they do not have fixed maturities
and fixed or determinable payments and management intends to hold them for the medium to long term.

Financlal assets - reclassification AASB2008-10(6})

Council may choose to reclassify a non-derivative trading financial asset out of the held-for-trading category
if the financial asset is no longar held for the purpose of selling it In the near term. Financlal assats olher
than loans and receivables are permitted to be reclassified out of the held-for-tradlng category only In rare
circumstances arising from a single event that is unusual and highly unlikely to recur In the near term. In
addition, Councll may choose to reclassify financlal assets that would meet the definition of loans and
receivables out of the held-for-trading or avallable-for-sale categories if it has ihe intention and abillty to
hoid these financial assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity at the date of reclassification.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of tha reclassification date. Fair value becomes the new cost or
amortised cost as applicable, and no reversals of falr value galns or losses recorded befors reclassification
date are subsequently made. Effective interest rates for financial assets reclassified to loans and
receivables and held-to-maturily categories are determined at the reclassification date. Further increasas in
estimates of cash flows adjust effective interest rates prospectively.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2009

Note 1 - Signiflcant Accounting Policies {cont)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date - the date on which Council
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus iransaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss Is initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the
income slatement. Financial assels are derecognised when the rights to recelve cash flows from the
financial assels have expired or have been transferred and Council has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

When securiies classified as available-for-sale are sold, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the income statement as gains and losses from investment securitles.

Subsequent measurement

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity Invesiments are carried at amortisad cost using the effective
interest method.

Avallable-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are subsequently
carried at fair valus. Gains or losses arising from changes In the fair value of the Fnancial assets at fair
value through profit or loss category are presented in the Income statement wilhin other income or other
expenses in the period in which they arlse. Dividend income from financlal assets at fair value through profit
and loss Is recognlsed in the income statement as part of revenuse from conlinuing operations when
Council's right to receive payments Is established. Changes In the fair value of olher manetary and non-
monelary securilies classified as avallable-for-sale are recognised in equity.

Fair value

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is
not active (and for unlisted securities), Councll establishes falr value by using valualion techniques. These
include the use of recent arm's length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the
same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing models making maximum use of market inputs and
relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

Impalment

Councll assesses al each balance date whather there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group
of financial assets is impaired. In the case ol equity securities classified as avallable-for-sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of a security below its cost Is considered as an indicator that the
securitles are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative
loss - measured as the difference between the acquisitlon cost and the cument falr value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss - Is removed from equity and
recognised in the income statement. !mpalrment losses racognised in the income statement on aquity
instruments classified as available-for-sale are not reversed through the income statement.

Policy

Council has an approved investment policy complying with Section 625 of the Local Govemnmeni Act and
5212 of the LG (General) Regulations 2005. Investments are placed and managed in accordance with
that policy and having particular regard to authorised investments prescribed under the Local Government
Investment Order. Council maintains an Investment policy that complies with the Act and ensures that it or
lls representatives exercise care, diligence and skill thal a prudent person would exercise in invesling
council funds. Council amended its policy during the year following revisions to the Investment Order
arising from the Cole Inquiry recommendations. Certain investments the Council holds are no longer
prescribed — for example managed funds, CDO's, and eqully linked notes — however they have been
retalned under grandfathering provisions of the Qrder. These will be disposed of when most financially
advantageous o Council.

Falr Value Estimation.

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabllitles must be estimated for recognition and
measurement or for disclosure purposes.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2009

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont)

The fair value of financial instruments traded In active markets s based on quoited market prices at the
balance sheet dats,

The fair value of financial instruments that are not iraded in an active markel is determined using valuation
technigues. Council uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market
conditions existing at each balance date. Quoted markst prices or dealer quotes for simllar inslruments are
used for long-term debt instruments held. Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash flows, are
used to determina fair value for the remaining financial instruments.

The nominal value less estimated credit adjusimenls of trade receivables and payables are assumed 1o
approximate iheir fair values. The fair value of financlal llabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current markel interest rate that is avallable to the
Council for similar financlal instruments.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2009

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies {cont)

7.1

7.2

7.3

74

Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equlpment {IPPE)
Transitlonal Provisions

Council has elected not 1o recognise land under roads in accordance with the deferral arrangements under
AASB 1045,

Recognitlon

All non-current assets purchased or constructed are capilalised as (he expenditure is incurred and
depreciated as soon as the assat is held “ready for use®.

Crown reserves, and improvements thereon, under Council's care and control are recognised as assets of
the Council. While ownership of lhe reserves remains with the Crown, Councll retains operational control of
the reserves and is responsible for their maintenance and use in accordance with the specific purposes to
which the reserves are dedicated.

Council has litle to, and Is the reglstered owner of, (number) rural fire appliances and associated rural fire
fighting equipment. These assets are under the control of the Rural Fire Services to enable that
Department t0 provide the bushfire protecilon defencas set out in their Service Lavel Agreement with
Councll, and accordingly have not been recognised In these reports. In accordance with normal Rural Fire
Service funding arrangements, Council continues to contribute to the costs of malntenance of this
equipment.

Materiality

Assels with an economic life in excess of one year are only capitalised where the cost of acquisition
exceeds materiality thresholds established by Council for each type of asset. In determining (and in
annually reviewing) such thresholds, regard is had to the nature of the asset and ils eslimated service life.
Examples of capitalisation thresholds applied during the year under review are provided in Note @ to these
accounts.

Valuatfon

Council's assels are being progressively revalued to fair value in accordance with a staged implementation
advised by the Department of Local Government. At balance date the following classes of IPPE were staled
al thelr fair value:

Operational land (External Valuation).

Buildings — Specialised/Non Specialised (External Valualon).
Water/Sewerage Networks (Internal Valuation).

Plant and equipment (as approximated by depreciated hislorical cost).
Roads and footpaths

* B & & a

Other asset classes will be revalued to fair value as follows:

2009/10 - Bridges and Drainage assels
2010/11 — Communlity Land, land improvements, other structures and other assets

Water and sewerage network assets are indexed annually between full revaluatlons In accordance with the
latest indices provided in the DWE Rates Reference Manual. For all other assets, Council assesses at each
reporting date whether there Is any indication that a revalued asset's carrying amount may differ materially
from that which would be determined if the asset were revalued at the reporting date. If any such indication
exlsts, Council determines the asset's fair value and revalues the asset to that amount. Full revaluations are
undertaken for all assets on a 5 year cycle.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation are credited to the asset revalustion reserve. To
the extent that the increasa reverses a decrease previously recognlsing profil or loss, the increase Is first
recognised in profil or logs. Decreases that raverse previous increases of the same asset are firs charged
agalnst revaluailon reserves diractly in equity to the extent of the remalning reserve atiributable to the
assel; all other decreases are charged to the Income statement.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2009

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont)

7.5

Subsequent costs are included in the assel's carmying amounl or recognised as a separale asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that fulure economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
Council and the cost of the ltem can be measured reliably. Ali other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the Incoma statement during the financial period in which they are incurrad.

The assels' residual values and usaeful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriale, at each balance
sheel date. An asset's carrying amount Is writlen down immediately 1o ils recoverable amount if the asset's
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount,

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with camrylng amount. Thesa are
included in the incoma statemant.

Land under roads

Councll has elected not to recognise land under roads acquired before 1 July 2008 in accordance with
AASB 1051. Any land under roads that was recognised before 1 July 2008 has been derecognised at 1 July
2008 against the opening balance of retained sarnings.

Land under roads acquired after 1 July 2008 Is recognised in accordance with AASB 116 — Property, Plant
and Equipment.

Land under roads is land under roadways and road reserves including land under footpaths, nature strips
and madlan strips. Council will racognise all land under roads when the valuation methodology has been
determined by the industry and Is, in the meantime, coilecting the necessary physical data fo undertake the
valuation.

Depreclation of Non-Current Assets

Other than land, all assels recognised are systematically depreciated over their useful lives in a manner
which reflects the consumption of the service potential embodied in those assats.

Depreciation is recognised on a straight-llne basis. Depreciation periods for infrastructure assets have baan
sstimated based on lhe best informatlon available to Council, bul appropriate records covering the entire
life cycle of these assets are not available, and extreme care should be used In interpreting financial
information based on these estimates.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets |s calculated using the straight line method to allocate
their cost, net of thelr residual values, over their estimaled useful lives, as follows:

Motor Cars - Sedans 5 yearsiDams & Reservolrs 100 year—sl
Trucks and Utilities 5-10 years|Waler Mains 80 -100 yearsl
Dozers, Graders, Rollers, 10 yeamlWaler Treatment Plani 70 -100 years|
Tractors, Backhoes, Loadsrs
Office Equipment 5-20 years{Melers & Planl 10 years)
Furnilure & Fittings 5-20 years|Sewerage Treatment Plants 50 -100 years]
Library Books 5 years|Sewer Malns & Pump Sialions 70 -100 years|
Buildings - masonry 50 ta 100 years|Roads - Unsealed 30 - 70 years|
Buildings — other construclion 20 lo 40 years] - Sealed 80 -120 years|
Prayground equipment 5 to 15 years| - Concrets 80 years|
Benches, seals, elc 10 1o 20 years{Bridges - Timber 40 yoars|
| - Concrele 120 years|
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2009

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont)

7.6

7.7

8.1

8.2

Impairment

Assets thal have an indefinite useful life are not subject to depreciation and are reviewed annually for
impairment. Assets thal are subject to depreciation ara reviewed for impairment whenever evenis or
changes in circumslances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for ihe amount by which the asset's canying amount exceeds Its recoverable amount {which is
the higher of the present value of fulure cash inflows or value in use.

For assels whosa future economic benefits are not dependent on the ability to generate cash flows, and
where ihe future economic benefits would be replaced if Council were deprived thereof, the value in use Is
the depreciated replacement cost. In assessing impairment for these assets, a rebutiable presumplion is
made that the current replacement cost exceeds the original cost of acquisition.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs in relatlon to qualifying assets (net of offsetting investment revenue) have been capitalised
In accordance with AASB 1023 Borrowing Costs. Interesl costs are expensed as they occur.

Payables
Goods & Services

Credilors are amounts due to external parlies for the supply of goods and services and are recognised as
liabililles when the goods and services are received. Creditors are normally paid 30 days after the month of
invoice. No interest Is payable on these amounts.

Payments Recelved in Advance & Deposits

Amounts received from external pariies in advance of service delivery, and security deposits held against
posslble damage to Council assels, are recognised as liabilitles until the service is delivered or damage
reinstated, or the amount is refunded as the cass may be,

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised al fair value, net of transaction costs incured. Borrowings are
subsequenlly measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds {net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognised in the income statement over tha period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facllities are recognised as transaction
costs of the loan to the extent that it Is probable that some or all of the facllity will be drawn down. In this
case, lhe fee Is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extant thera Is no evidence that il is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facllity to which It relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in tha contract Is discharged,
cancellad or expired, The difference between the carrying amount of a financial llability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration pald, Including any non-cash assets
transferred or llabllitles assumed, Is recognlsed In other income or finance cost.

Borrowings are classified as cumrent liabliltles unless Council has an unconditional right 1o defer ssttlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2009

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policles (cont)

10.

109

10.2

Employee Benefits
Salaries, Wages & Compensated Absences

Liabilities for employees’ entillements to salaries, wages and compensated absences expecied to be pald
or settled within 12 months of reporting date are accrued at nominal amounts (including payroll based on-
costs) measured in accordance with AASB 119 Employee Benefits.

Liabllities for employee benefits not expected lo be paid or settled within 12 months are measured as the
present value of the estimalted future cash oulflows (including payroll based on-costs) to be made In
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date. Present values are calculated using
govemment guaranteed securities raies with similar maturity terms.

Woelghted average discount rate 6.70% {2008, 6.57%)

Welghted average settlement period 15 years (2008, 15 years)

Council does not make payment for untaken sick leave,
Superannuation

The Council makes employer superannuation contributions in respect of Its employses to the Local
Govermment Superannuation Scheme. The Scheme has two types of membership, each of which is funded
differently.

Accumulation Fund Members

The accumulation fund receives both employer and employee contributions on a progressive basis.
Employer contributions are normally based on a fixed percentage of employee earnings in accordance with
Superannuation Guarantes Legislation (9% in 2007/08; 8% in 2008/07). No further liabllity accrues to the
employer as the superannuation benefits accruing 1o employees are represented by thelr share of the net
assets of the Fund.

Defined Benefit Members

Council makes employer conlributions to the defined benefils categories of the Schame at rates determined
by the Scheme's Trustee, The rate is cumently 0.95 times members' contributions (0.95 times members'
contributions in 2006/2007). Employees also make member contributions to the Fund. As such, assets
accumulate In the Fund lo meet the member's benefits, as defined in the Trust Deed, as they accrue.

The Fund's Deflned Benefit Plan is a muill-employer sponsored plan. As the Fund's assels and liabilities
ara pogled and are not allocated by employer, the Acluary is unable to allocate benefit llabllilies, assets and
costs between employers. As provided by AASB 119.32(b), Council does not use defined benefit
accountlng for these contribulions.

The Local Govemment Superannuation Scheme has advised member councils that, as a result of the
global financial crisls, it has a significant deficlency of assets over liabilities amounting to around $290
million at 30 June 2009. As a result, they have asked for significant increasss In contribulions from
2009/2010 onwards to recover that deficiency. Council's share of that deficiency cannat be accurately
calculated as the Scheme is a mutual arrangemenl where asssts and liabilitles are pooled together for all
member counclls. For this reason, no liability for the deficiency has been recognised in Council's accounts.
Council has, however, disclosed a contingent liability in note 18 to reflect the possible obligation that may
arise should the Scheme require Immadiate payment to corract the deficiency.

Contributions lo defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense as they become payable. Prepald
contributions are recognised as an assel lo lhe extent thal a cash refund or a reduction in the future
paymenils is available.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2009

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont)

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Construction Contracts

Conslruction works undertaken by Councll for third parties (princlpally the Roads & Traffic Authority for
works on national and state highways) are generally on an agency basls where the third party reimburses
Council for actual costs incurred, and usually do not extend bayond the reporting period. As there is no
profit component, such works are treated as 100% completed. Reimbursements not received are
recognised as recelvables and reimbursements received in advance ara recognised as “payments received
In advance”.

Joint Ventures and Associated Entities

Council participates in cooperative arrangements with other Councils for the provision of services and
facilities, This arrangement is based on a resource sharing model where shared cosls are distributed to
olher Councils. The NESAC organisation Is not a formal struclure; however, sach participant agrees to
share resources on a charge basis. Debtors for works performed by Uralla Shire Councll and chargeable to
ather members are included in note 7 and creditors for works performed by other members and chargeable
to Uralla Shire Council are Included as creditors in Note 10.

Leases

Lease arrangements have been accounted for in accordance wilh AASB 117.

In respect of finance leases, where Councll substantially camies all of the risks incident to ownaership, the
leased items are initially recognised as assets and liabilities equal in amount to the presenl value of the
minimum lease payments. The assets are disclosed as assets under lease, and are amortised to expense
over the period during which the Council is expected to benefit from the use of lhe leased assels. Lease
payments are allocated between interest expense and reduction of the lease liability, according to the
interest rale implicit In the lease.

In respecl of operaling leases, where the lessor substantialty relains all of the risks and banefits incident to
ownership of the leased items, lease payments are charged to expense over the lease term.

GST Implications

In accordance with UIG Interpretation1031 “Accounting for the Goods & Services Tax®

> Receivables and Creditors include GST receivable and payable.

» Except in relation to inpul taxed activities, revenues and opserating expenditures exclude GST
receivable and payable.

> Non-current assets and capital expenditures Include GST net of any recoupment.

> Amounts included in the Statement of Cash Flows are disclosed on a gross basis.

Provision for close down and restoration and for environmental clean up costs - Tips and Quarrles
{i) Restoration

Close down and restoralion costs include the dismantling and demolition of infrastructure and the removal
of residual materials and remediation of disturbed areas. Estimaled close down and restoration costs are
provided for in the accounting period when the obligation arising from the related disturbance occurs,
whether this occurs during the development or during the operation phasa, based on the net present value
of estimated future costs. Provislons for close down and restoration costs do not Include any additional
obligations which are expected to arise from future disturbance. The costs are estimated on the basis of a
closure plan. The cost eslimates are calculaled annually during the life of the operation to reflect known
developments, eg updaled cost estimates and revisions to lhe eslimated lives of operations, and are
subject to formal review at regular intervals.

Close down and restoration costs are a nommal consequence of lip and quarry operations, and the majority
of close down and restoration expenditure is incurred at the end of tha life of the operations. Although the
uitimate cost to be incurred is uncertain, Councll estimates the respective costs based on feasibility and
engineering studles using currenl restoration standards and techniques.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2009

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont)

18.

17.

18.

The amortisation or 'unwinding’ of the discount applied in establishing the net present value of provisions is
charged to the Income slalement in each accounting period. The amortisation of the discount is shown as a
borrowing cost.

Other movements in the provisions for close down and restoration costs, including those resulting from new
disturbance, updated cost estimates, changes to the estimated lives of operations and revislons to discount
rates are capitalised within property, plant and equlpment. These costs are then depreclated over the lives
of the assets to which they relate.

(i) Rehabilitation

Where rehabilltation is conducted systemalically over the life of the operation, rather than al the time of
closure, provision is made for the estimated outsianding continuous rehabilitation work at each balance
sheet date and the cost Is charged to the income stalemanl.

Provislon is made for the estimaied present value of the cosls of environmental clean up obligations
outslanding at the balance shest date. These costs are charged to the income statemanl. Movements in lhe
environmental clean up provisions are presented as an operating cost, excopt for the unwind of the
discount which is shown as a borrowing cost. Remediation procedures generally commence soon after the
time the damage, remediation process and estimated remediation costs become known, but may continue
for many years depending on the nature of the disturbance and the remediation lechniguas.

As noted above, the ullimate cost of environmental remediation Is uncertain and cost estimates can vary in
response to many factors including changes to the relsvant legal requirements, the emergence of new
restoration iechniques or experience at other locations. The expected timing of expenditure can also
change, for example In response to changes in quarry reserves or production rates. As a resull there could
be significant adjustments to the provision for close down and restoralion and environmental clean up,
which would affect future financial results.

Intanglble Assets
IT development and software

Costs incurred In developing products or systems and costs incurred in acquiring software and licenses that
will contribute to fulure period financial benefils through revenue generation andfor cost reduction are
capitalised to sofiware and systems. Costs capilalised include external direct costs of materials and
service, direct payroll and payroll related costs of empicyees’ time spent on the project. Amortisation Is
calculatad on a stralght line bases over periods generally ranging from 3 to 5 years.

IT development costs include only those costs directly attributable to the development phase and are only
recognised following completlon of technical feaslbility and where Counclt has an intention and ability to use
the asset.

Crown Reserves

Crown Reserves under Council's care and control are recognised as assets of the Council. While
ownership of the reserves remains with the Crown, Council retains operational control of the reserves and s
responsible for their maintenance and use in accordance with the specific purposes to which the reserves
are dedicated.

Improvements on Crown Reserves are also recorded as assets, while maintenance costs incurred by
Councll and revenuas relating the reserves are recognised within Councli’s Income Statement,

A working party of interested representatives from both State and Local Government is being formed to
consider the accounting issues related to the Crown Reserves, with the intention of developing a consistent
approach lo thelr recognition and fulure accounting treatment across both tiers of govemment,

Rural Flre Service assets

Under saclion 119 of the Rural Fire Services Acl 1997, “all fire fighting equipment purchased or constructed
whally or from money to the credit of the Fund is to be vested In the council of the area for or on behalf of
which the fire fighting equipment has been purchased or consiructed”. Until such time as discussions on
this matter have concluded and the legislation changed, Council will continue to account for these assets as
It has been dolng In previous years.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2009

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Pollcles {cont)

19.

20.

21.

22,

Budget Information

The Statement of Financial Performance, Statement of Cash Flows and Nole 2 provide budget information
of revenues and expendilures by type and for each of the major activilies of the Council. Budgst figures
presented are those approved by Council at the beginning of the financial year and do not include Council
approved variations throughoul the year. Short explanations of the most significant variations are given in
Note 16, and further information of the nature and amount of all variations Is available from the Council
office upon request.

Allocation between current and non-current assets and liabllitles

In the determination of whether an asset or llabllity Is current or non-current, consideration is given lo the
time when each asset or liability is expected lo be settled. The asset or llability is classified as current if it is
expected to be sellled wilhin the ensuring 12 months, being the Councll's operational cycle. In the case of
liabilities where Council does not have the unconditional right to defer setlement beyond 12 months, such
as vesled long service leave, the liability is classified as current even if not expected to be seltled within the
next 12 months. Inventories held for trading are classified as current even If not expected to be realised in
the next 12 months.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognlsed net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST
Incurred Is not recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case il Is recognised as pan of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense. Receivables and payables are stated Inclusive of the
amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
authority is included with olher recelvables or payables in the balance sheet. Cash flows are presented on
a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities which are
recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority, are presented as operaling cash flows

Rounding
In accordance with the Code of Accounting Praclice all amounts shown In the Financlal Siatements are In
Australlan currency and have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars,
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2008

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies {cont)

23.

New Accounfing Standards & UIG Interpratations

Certain new accounting standards and UIG interprelations have bean published that are not mandatory for
the 30 June 2009 reporting period. Council's assessment of the impact of these new standards and
inlerpretations Is set out below.

(i) AASB 8 Operaling Segrnents and AASB 2007-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
arising from AASB 8 (effective from 1 January 2009)

AASB 8 will result in a significant change in the approach to segment reporting, as it requires adoption of a
‘management approach’ to reporting on financial performance. The information being reported will be based
on what the key decislon makers use intemnally for evaluating segment performance and deciding how to
allocate resources to operating segments. There will be no impact as this Standard is not applicable lo not
for- profit entities like Council.

(/) Revised AASB 123 Borrowing Costs and AASB 2007-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards arfsing from AASB 123 (effective from 1 January 2009)

The revisad AASB 123 has removed the option 1o expense all borrowing costs and - when adopted — will
require the capitalisalion of all borrowing costs directly atiribulable to the acqulsillon, construction ar
productlon of a qualifying asset. There will be nc Impact on the financial reports as Council already
capilalises borrowing costs relating lo qualifying assets.

(iif} Revised AASB 101 Presantation of Financial Statements and AASB 2007-8 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 101 (effective from 1 January 2009)

The September 2007 revised AASB 101 requires the presentalion of a slatement of comprehensive income
and makes changes to the statement of changes In equity, but will nol affect any of the amounts recognised
In the financial statements. If an entity has made a prior period adjustment or has reclassiied itams in the
financial statements, it will need to disclose a third balance sheet (statement of financial position), this one
being as at the beginning of the comparative period. Councll will apply the revised standard from 1 July
2009,

(iv) AASB 2008-1 Amendments to Austrailan Accounting Standard — Share-based Payments: Vesting
Conditions and Canceliations {effective from 1 January 2009)

AASB 2008-1 clarifies that vesting conditions are service condltions and performance conditions only and
that other features of a share-based payment are not vesting conditions. It also specifies that all
cancellations, whether by the enlity or by other parties, should receive the same accounting trealment.
There will be no impact on the financial reports as Council makes no share based payments.

{v) Revised AASB 3 Business Combinations, AASB 127 Consolidaled and Separate Financial Statements
and AASB 2008-3 Amendments fo Auslralian Accounting Standards arlsing from AASS 3 and AASB 127
(effectiva 1 July 2009)

The revised AASB 3 continues to apply the acquisition method to business combinations, but with some
significant changes. For example, all payments to purchase a buslness are to be recorded at fair valua at
the acquisition date, with contingent payments classified as debt subsequently remeasured through the
income statement. There is a choice on an acquisition-by-acqulsition basls to measurs the non-centrolling
interest In the acquiree efther at fair valve or ai the non-controlling interest's proportionale share of the
acquiree’s net assets. All acquisilion-related costs must be expensed.

The revised AASB 127 requires the effects of all transactions with non-conirolling interests to be recorded in
equity if there is no change In control and thase iransactions will no longer result In goodwill or gains and
losses. The standard alse specifies the accounting when control is lost. Any remaining Interest in the entity
is remeasured to falr value, and a gain or loss Is recognised in profit or loss. There will be no impact on the
financial reports as Council has no exposure to these types of transactions.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2009

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont)

(vi) AASB 2008-6 Further Amendments o Australlan Accounting Standards arising from the Annual
improvements Project (effective 1 July 2009)

The amendments o AASB 5 Discontinued Operations and AASB 1 First-Time Adoplion of Australian-
Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards are part of the JASB's annual improvements
project published in May 2008. They clarify that all of a subslidiary's assets and liabllitles are classified as
held for sale If a partial disposal sale plan results in loss of control. Relevant disclosures should be made for
this subsidiary if the definition of a discontinued operation is met. There will be no impact on the financial
reports as Council does not have any subsidiaries it is propesing to dispose of.

(vii) AASB 2008-7 Amendmenls to Ausiralian Accounting Standards - Cost of an Investment in a
Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associafe (effective 1 Juty 2009)

In July 2008, the AASB approved amendments to AASB 1 First-time Adoption of Internationat Financial
Reporling Standards and AABS 127 Consolldated and Separate Financial Statements. Councll will apply
the revised rules prospectively from 1 July 2009, After that date, all dividends received from investments In
subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities or associates will be recognised as revenue, aven if they are paid out
of pre-acquisition profits, but the investmenls may need to be tested for impairment as a result of the
dividend payment.

{viil) AASB Intarpretation 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate (effactive 1 January 2009}

AASB-l 15 clarifies whether AASB 118 Revenue or AASB 111 Construction Contracts should be applied to
particular transactions. Councll intends to apply the interpretation from 1 July 20089. It has reviewed Its
current agreements for the sale of real estate in light of the new guidance and concluded that there would
be no change to the accounting for these agreements if AASB-| 15 was adopted in the current financial
yaar, Consequently, it does nol expect to make any adjustment on the Initial application of AASB-] 15.

(Ix) AASB Interpretation 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation {effecllve 1 October 2008)

AASB-| 16 clarifles which foreign currency risks qualify as hedged risk in the hedge of a net investment in a
foreign operation and that hedging insiruments may be held by any entlty or entitles within the group. I also
provides guldance on how an entity should determine the amounts to be reclassified from equity to profit or
loss for both the hedging instrument and the hedged item. Thare will be no Impact on the financial repors
as Council hae no hedges of a net Investment in a foreign operation.

{x) AASB 2008-8 Amendment to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (effective 1
July 2009)

AASB 2008-8 amends AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and must be
applied retrospectively in accordance with AASB 108 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors. The amendment makes two significant changes. It prohibits designeting Inflalion as a
hedgeable companent of a fixed rata debt, It also prohibits including time value in the one-sided hedged risk
when designaling options as hedges. Councll will apply the amended standard from 1 July 2009, It is not
expected to have any impact on the financial reports.

{xi) AASB Interpratation 17 Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Owners and AASB 2008-13 Amendments
to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB interpretation 17

AASB-| 17 applies to situations where an entity pays dividends by distributing non-cash assets to its
shareholders. These distributions will need to be measured al falr value and the entity will need to
recognise the difference between the fair value and the camying amount of the distributed assets in Ihe
income slatement on distribution. Thera will be no impact on the financlal reports as Councll has no
axposure to these types of transactions.
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2009

Note 2 (cont) - COMPONENTS OF FUNCTIONS

The activilies relating to Councll functlions are as follows:

Governance
Costs relating o Council's role as a component of democralic govemmenl, Including slections, meetings and
associated activities, area representation, and public disclosure and compliance, logether with related
administration costs.

Adminlstration
Costs not otherwise attributed to functions.

Public Order & Safety
Flre protection, animal control, enforcement of local government regulations, emergency services, other.

Health

Administration and Inspectlon, Immunisations, food control, insect & vermin control, noxious planis, health
centres, other.

Community Services & Education
Administration, famlly day care, child-care, youth services, other services to families and children, aged and
disabled, migrant services, Aboriginal services, olher community services, aducation.

Housing & Community Amenltles
Housing, town planning, domestic waste management services, other waste management services, streel
cleaning, other sanitation and garbage, urban stormwater dralnage, environmental protection, public
cemeteries, public conveniences, other community amenities.

Water Supplles

Sewerage Services

Recreatlon & Culture
Public libraries, museums, arl galleries, community centres, public halls, other cultural services, swimming
pools, sporting grounds, parks and gardens, fakes, other sport and recreation.

Fuel & Energy - Gas Supplies.

Mining, Manufacturing & Construction
Buliding control, abalttoirs, quarries and pils, other.

Transport & Communlcation
Roads and strests, bridges, footpaths, aerodromes, parking areas, bus shelters and services, water transport,
works undertaken for Roads & Transport Authority, sireet lighting, other,

Economlic Affairs
Camping areas, caravan parks, tourism and area promotlon, Industrial development promotion, saleyards and
markets, real estate development, commercial nurseries, private works, other business undertakings.
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30th June 2009

RATES & ANNUAL CHARGES

Ordinary Rales
Residential

Farmland
Business

Special Rates
TV Rate

Annual Charges
Domestic Waste Managementi
Water Supply
Sewerage Services
Dralnage
Other Waste Management

Total Rates & Annual Charges

USER CHARGES & FEES
User Charges
Domestlc Wasle Management
Water Supply
Sewerage Services
Dralnage Services
Other Waste Management
Other

Fees

Private Works

Tablelands Community Transporl
Sale of scrap malenal

Rents

Swimming Pool

Aged Care

Town Planning

Tablelands Community Service Option
Cemeterles

Other

Total User Charges & Fees

Note 3 - INCOME

2009
$'000

218
1,810

2,758

197
323
421

17

985
3,743

T

2008
$000

951
1,735

250
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30th June 2009

Note 3 - REVENUES (cont)

2009
$'000
INVESTMENT REVENUES
Interest receivable
- overdue rates & charges 32
- cash & investments 448
Fair value adjustments - investments
- other __{(283)
Total Investment Revenues 197

lcenain financlal insruments, full detalls of which have bean provided in Note 15.

541 Bi
" —_— P - - ———— - e —_— -
iCouncil's net return on Investments during both reporting periods has been materally affected by the polenlial loss In value of]

OTHER REVENUES

Other fines 1
Legal Fees Recoverad 18
Insurance Claims 36
Commissions & Agency Fees 2
Miscellaneous sales 103
Other 116
Total Other Revenues 276

2008
$'000

32
230

780
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2009

Note 3 - INCOME (cont)

Notes
GRANTS
General Purpose (Untied)
Financial Assistance
Individually significant item see
- additional Grants Commission payment below

Pensioner Rales Subsidies (General)
Specific Purpose
Pensioner Rates Subsidles
Water Supplies
Sewerage Services
Domestic Wasle Management
Bundarra Neighbourhood Aid
Aged Care Facilities
Other Frail Aged and Disabled Services
Library
Tablelands community Service Options
Tablelands community Transport
Roads & Bridges
Employment & Training Programs
Community Care Services
Bushfire & Emergency Services
Other
Total Grants & Subsidies

Comprising:
- Commonwealth funding
- State funding

Individually significant ltem

On 26 June 2009, Council received payment of the first
quarter instalment of the 2009/10 Grant Commission (FAG)
grant. This represents a significan! increase in income from
this source for 2008/09, with an equivalent reduction in
2009/10.

CONTRIBUTIONS & DONATIONS
Developer Contributions
Section 94 17
RTA Contributions
Other Councils - Joint Works
Other
Total Contributions & Donatlons

TOTAL GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS

OPERATING CAPITAL
2009 2008 2009 2008
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

1,912 1,783 - -

484 - - -
52 43

13 13 - o

19 19 - -

11 11 - -

. 45 - -

1,322 1,066 - -

566 873 - 18

28 29 - -

1,851 1,473 - 40

217 218 - o

101 - 1,139 332

15 15 - -

47 40 - -

26 55 90 223

306 77 - -

6,970 5,760 1,229 613

4,419 3,722 c 332

2,551 2,038 1,229 281

6,970 5,760 1,229 613

484 - o .

- - 27 53
1,050 895 = 15
129 447 - =
81 53 - -

L} 1 L] 5 27 68
8,230 7,155 1,256 681
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2009

Note 3 - INCOME (cont})

CONDITIONS OVER GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS

Grants and contributions which were obtainad on the condition that they be expended for specified purposes or in
a future period, but which are not yel expended in accordance with thosa conditions, are as follows:

2009 2008
$°000 £'000
Grants Contrib Granis Contrib

Unexpended al the close of the

previous reporting period 524 231 743 235
Less: expended during the current period from revenues
recagnised in previous reporting periods

Section 94/64 Developer Coninbutions - 40 - 57
Roads Infrastruciure 338 - 337 -
Henitage & Cultural Services 44 - 7 -
Community Care Services 190 - 89 -
Subtotal 572 40 433 57
Plus: amounts recognised as revenues In this reporting period
but not yet expended in accordance with the conditions
Section 94/64 Developer Conlributions - 34 - 53
Roadys Infrastructure 395 - 206 -
Heritage & Cultural Services 60 - 234 -
Community Care Services 17 - 74 -
Subtotal 472 34 514 53
Unexpended at the close of this reporting period and held as
restricted assats 724 225 824 231
Net increase (decrease) in restricted assets in the current (100) (6) a1 (4)
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2009

Note 4 - EXPENSES

EMPLOYEE COSTS

Salaries and Wages

Travelling

Employee Leave Entitlements
Superannuation - defined conlribulicn plan contribulions
Superannuation - defined banefil plan contributions
Workers' Compensation Insurance

Fringe Benefits Tax

Training Costs (excluding Salaries)

Other

Less: Capitalised and distributed costs
Total Operating Employee Costs

Total Number of Employess
{Fuil ima equivalant at end of reporting period)

BORROWING COSTS

Interest on Loans

Unwinding of presenl value discounts & premiums
Gross Interest Charges

Less: Borrowing Costs capltallsed

Total Interest Charges

MATERIALS & CONTRACTS
Raw materials & consumables
Contractor and consultancy costs
Auditor's Remuneration

- Audit Services
Legal Expenses

- Planning & Development

- Other Legal Expenses
Total Materials & Contracts

2009
$'000

4,942

743
400
147
169
12
72
43
(336)

6,219

115

120
153
153
2,809
1,010

20

3,879

4,289
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th Juna 2009

Note 4 - EXPENSES (cont) IMPAIRMENT DEPRECIATION
2009 2008 2009 2008
$°000 $000 $'000 $000

DEPRECIATION, AMORYISATION & IMPAIRMENT

Plant and Equipment - - 850 784

Office Equipment - = 28 36

Furniture & Fittings - - 50 51

Buildings - non-speciallsed - - 76 122

Other Struciures - - 75 74

Infrastruclura

- roads, bridges & foolpaths - - 715 708

- stormwater drainage - - 15 15

- water supply network not elsewhera included - - 52 50

- sewerage network nol slsewhere Included - - 13 12

Cther assets

- hertage collections - - 1 1

- other - - 1 -

Future Reinstalement Costs

- Tips - - 17 31

Less: Capitalised and distributed costs - - {188) 46

Total Depreclation, Amortlsation & Impairmen{ - - 1,505 1,838

2009 2008
$'000 $000

OTHER EXPENSES

Mayoral fee 13 12

Councillors' Fees & Allowances ao 68

Councillors' {incl. Mayor) Expenses 18 14

Insurances 230 199

Street Lighting €6 63

Light, Power & Heating 240 188

Telephone & Communications 92 108

Donatlons & Contributions to Local & Reglonal Bodles 246 241

Advertising 13 12

Bank Charges 3 9

Postage and Frelght 56 37

Items for Resale 5 2

Printing and Statlonery 45 55

Promotion and Publiclty 16 14

Valualion Fees 23 13

Election Expenses 16 -

Subscriptions & Publications 57 56

Total Other Expenses 1,219 1,097

Page N23



URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30th June 2009

Note 5 - GAIN OR LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS

2009

$'000
DISPOSAL OF INFRASTRUCTURE, PLANT & EQUIPMENT
Proceeds from disposal 415
Less: Carrying amount of assets sold 150
Gain (Loss) on disposal 285
DISPOSAL OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Proceeds from disposal 200
Less: Carrying amount of assets sotd 8
Gain (Loss) on dispasal 192

TOTAL GAIN (LOSS) ON DISPOSAL
OF ASSETS 457

2008
$'000

246
125
121

417
417

|

121
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2009

Note 6 - CASH ASSETS & INVESTMENT SECURITIES

2009 2008
$'000 $'000
Current  Non-Currentl Current  Non-Currenl
CASH ASSETS
Cash on Hand and at Bank 953 1,210
Short Term Deposits & Bills, elc 501 1,006
Total Cash Assets 1,454 2,216

Cash Assels comprise shori-lerm, highly liquid investments readily convertible to known amounts of
cash that are subjsct ta insignificant risk of changes of value.

INVESTMENT SECURITIES
Summary
Financial assets at fair value through

828 - 1,119 -
profit and loss
Held to malurity Invesiments 4,584 . 1,959 -
Total 5,412 - 3,078 -
Financlal assels at fair valua through profil and loss
At beginning of year 1,119 - 2,316
Revaluallon to Income Stalement (283) (780}
Disposals {8) (417)
At end of year 828 - 1,119 -
Held for trading:
-CDOs 328 - a19 -
-FRNs 500 - 500 -
“B28 - 1,119 -
Held to Maturity Investments
At beglnning of year 1,859 - 1,044 -
Additions 5,784 - 815 -
Disposals {3,158} - - -
Al end of year 4,584 - 1,859 -
Comprising:
- Term Deposite 4,584 - 1,959 -
~4,584 - 1,059 -

The permitted forms of Investment In financlal instruments of the Council are defined in an order made
by the Minister of Local Gavernment on 31 July 2008, and may broadly be described as "Trusiee
Securilies”. Deposils and Bifls are with, or have been accepled by, banks and credit unions and bear
various rates of interest between 2% and 5% (2008 - 3% and 7%). NCDs, CDOs, FRNs and Managed
Funds are afl wiih organisations with credit ratings tha! compfied wilth the Minister's Order at the time of
acquisition and bear various rates of rates of refurn between 4% and 9% (2008 - 4% and 9%).

For further informalion refer to Nots 15 below.,
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2009
Note 6 - CASH ASSETS & INVESTMENT SECURITIES (cont)

RESTRICTED CASH ASSETS & INVESTMENT SECURITIES

2009 2008
$°000 $'000
Current Non-Currenl Current Non-Currenl
Cash & Cash Equivalenl Assets 1,454 2,216
tnveslment Sacurilies 5,412 - 3,078 O
TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENT
SECURITIES 6,866 ) 5,284 )
External Restriclions 3,814 - 3,433 -
Internal Restrictions 1,604 - 1,021 -
Unrestricied 1,448 - B840 -
6,866 - 6,294 -
DETAILS OF MOVEMENTS OF
RESTRICTED CASH ASSETS & INVESTMENT SECURITIES
Opening Movements Closing
Balance 30 | Transfers To |Transfers From| Balance 30
Notes June 2008 Restriction Reslriction June 2009
$000 $000 5000 — §000 |
External Reslrictions
Included in liabllitles
Unexpanded Loans 33 300 a3 300
Aged Care Bonds 1,185 90 - 1,275
Other {McMaugh) - 129 - 129
1,218 519 33 1,704 |
Other
Daveloper Conlributions 17 231 34 40 225
Unexpended Granls 824 472 572 724
Water Supply funds 441 - 33 408
Sewerage funds 719 6 - 725
Domesiic Wasle Management - 28 - 28
2,215 540 845 2,110
Total External Restrictions 3,433 1,059 B78 3,814

External Restrictions arise pursuant fo sectlon 409(3) of the Local Government Act the Local
Government (General) Regulation 2005 and other applicable laglsiation. Further information ralating lo
Developer Contributions Is provided in Note 17 and Unexpended Granis in Note 3. Amounts raised by
speclef rates {eg. Water & Sewer) or for Domestic Waste Management may only be used for those

Inlernal Restrictions

Employee Leave Entitlements 464 - {9) 473
Plant roplacement 250 50 - 300
Carry-over works 307 142 204 245
FAG In advance - 784 30D 484
Strategic Alllance - 77 - 77
Gravel Pit Restoralion - 18 - 18
Kentucky Hall - 4 - 4
Arding Hall 3 - 3
Total Internel Restrictions 1,021 1.078 495 1,604

Intsrnal Restrictions arise pursuant {o resolutions of Councll o set aside reserves of cash resources
either relating to llabliities recognised in these reports or (o fund fulure sxpenditure for the statsd purpose.
Such reserves are nol permiled to excesd the smounts of cash assels and cash investments not
otherwise restricted.
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2009

Note 7 - RECEIVABLES
2009 2008
$'000 $'000
Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
Rates & Annual Charges 322 - 384 -
Interest & Extra Charges 72 - 62 -
User Charges & Fees 156 - 160 -
Accrued Revenues 444 - 202 -
Other levels of Government 165 - 27 -
Retirement Home Contributions - - - 1086
Other 240 - 335 -
Tolal 1,399 - 1,170 106
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Debls
User Charges & Fees 2 - 2 -
1,397 - 168 108

Rates, Annual Charges, interast & Extra Charges

Overdue rates and annual charges (being amounts not paid on or before the due date determined in
accordance with the Local Government Acl) are secured over the refevant land and are subject to simple
Interest at a rate of 10.00% (2008: 10.00%,). Although Council is not materially exposed to any individual
ratepayer, credit risk exposure is concenltrated within the Council boundaries in the State of New South
Wales.

Other levels of Government

Amounts due have been calculated in accordance with the terms and conditions of the respactive
programs following advice of approvals, and do not bear interest, All amounis are due by Departments
and Agencles of the Government of New South Walss and the Government of Australia.

Retlrement Home Contributions

Pursuant to Commonwealth legisiation certain intending residents are required to conlribute amounts on
an interest free basis. The amounts are subject {o certain deductions as prescribed by the legislation, the
balance being repald on termination of tenancy. Compliance with these procedures is subject lo separale
audit in accordance with that Act,

Other Recelvables

Amounts due {other than User Charges which are secured over the relevant fand) are unsecured and do
not bear interest. Although Council is not materially exposed to any individual deblor, credit risk exposure
is concentrated within the Council's boundarias in the State of New South Wales.

AGGREGATE ASSET ARISING FROM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

0 0
RESTRICTED RECEIVABLES
Water Supply 206 - 218 -
Sewerage Services 59 - 73 -
Domestic Waste Managemant 42 - 34 -
Other - - - 106
Tolal Restrictions 307 - 325 106
Unrestricted Receivables 1,080 - 843 -
Total Recelvablas 1,397 - 1,168 108
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2009

Note 8 - INVENTORIES & OTHER ASSETS

2009 2008
$'000 $'000
Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
INVENTORIES
Stores & Materials 187 - 168 -
Total Inventorles 187 - 168 -

Inventories not expected lo be realised
within the next 12 months.

Aggregate write-downs and other losses recognised as an expense, and reversals of these, wara not
material in amount in either year. All such reversals occurred principally as a result of clerical
inaccuracies durina slores operalions.

OTHER ASSETS
Prepayments 106 - 92 -
Total Other Assets 106 - 02 -
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PAYABLES

Goods & Services

Payments received in advance
Accrued Expenses

Alliance Private Works
Retirement Home Contributions
Deposits, Retentions & Bonds
Other

Total Payables

Current payables not expected to
be settled within the next 12
months.

BORROWINGS
Loans

- Secured

Total Borrowings

All interest bearing fiabllities are secured over the fulure revenuss of the Council,

PROVISIONS

Annual Leave

Sick Leave

Long Service Leave
Reinstatement, Remediation, etc.
(ses also Note 26)

Other

Total Provislons

Current payables not expecled to
be settiad within the next 12
months.

Movemenis In Provislons

Opening Balance

Add Addllional amounts recognised
Unwinding of present value discounts

{Less) Paymenls

Closing Balance

URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2009
Note 10 - LIABILITIES
2009 2008
$'000 $'000
Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
1,049 - 676 .
64 - 65 .
299 - 299 -
472 - 623 -
1,275 - 1,185 -
30 - - -
2 = 2 -
3,191 - 2,850 -
886 698
209 1,816 1,047 B45
209 1,816 1,047 845
595 - 539 -
76 - 72 -
461 419 608 330
- 584 129 422
27 - 27 -
1,159 1,003 1,375 752
1,033 736
Employes Insurance Reinstate-
Benefits Losases menl, etc. Cir s
2000 2008 2009 2009
$'000 $'000 $000 $'000
1,549 - 551 27
320 . .
. = 33
(318) - 5 .
1,551 - 584 27
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2009

NOTE 10 - LIABILITIES (cont)

Provision for Insurance Losses

At any time Council may be involved in defending a number of separaie aclions arising from various causes,
fut=riher details of which are given In Nole 18. Council makes provision for lha best eslimate of the probable
costs It will incur in defending such actions, and records a cantingent liability for the balance of polential losses.

Prrovision for Relnstalemenl, rehabllitation & restoration liabllities

Council is required by law to reinstale/ rehabllilala lhe areas of certain lips and quarries for roadmaking materials
when it ceases to usae each facllity. Engineearing eslimales have been made based on current reinstatement
standards and discounled lo its present value over the eslimated remaining life of each facllity at he ralas
appllcable to government securities.

2009 2008
$'000 $'000
Current Non-Current Current Non-Current

AGGREGATE LIABILITY ARISING FROM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

1,132 419 1,219 330
LIABILITIES relating to RESTRICTED ASSETS
Waler Supplias
Payables 4 - 3 -
Subtotal 4 - 3 -
Sewa ices
Payables 47 - 46 -
Interest Bearing Liabilities 12 - - 15
Sublotal 59 - 46 15
Other
Payables 1,275 - 1,185 -
Interast Beering Liabilities 3 83 2 86
Provisions 74 62 221 83
Subtolal 1,352 145 1,408 169
TOTAL 1,415 145 1,457 184
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2009

Note 11 - RECONCILIATION TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(a) Reconclliation of Cash

Cash Assets comprise short-term, highly liquid investments readily convertible to known
amounts of cash that are subject to insignificant risk of changes of value. Cash at the
end of the reporting period as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconclled to

the related items in the Balance Sheet as follows:

Total Cash Assefs {Note B)
Less: Bank Overdraft  (Note 10)
Balances per Statement of Cash Flows

{b) Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets to Cash
from Operating Activities

Net Operating Result from Income Statement

Add: Depreciation, Amortisation & Impalrment
Unwinding of present value discounts & premiums
Investments - impairment & fair value adjustments
Increase In other provisions
Decrease In racelvables
Increase in frade creditors
Increase in other payables
Decrements from Revaluations

Less: Dacrease In provislon for doubtful debts
Decrease in employae benefits provisions
ncrease In receivablas
Increase In inventories
Increasa in other assets
Decrease in accrued expenses payabie
Decreass in other payables
Gain on Sale of Assels
Non-cash Capital Granls and Contributions

Net Cash provided by (or used in) operations

2009
$'000

1,454

A 254

3,028
1,693
33
283

3r2

5411

220
14
121

457
a0

4,481

2008
$'000

2,216

2,216

244
1,884
36
386

780

3,367

116

27

121
259

2,813
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2009

Note 11 {cont) - RECONCILIATION TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2009 2008
$'000 $'000
{c) Non-Cash Financing and Investing Activities

Acquisition of assets by means of:
- Bushfire Grants 90 223
- Developer Contributions received in kind - o
- Non-cash Issues of Shares in Other Companles - &
- Estimated future reinstatement, elc costs - 36

90 259

(d) Flnancing Arrangements

Unrestricted access was avallable at balance date to the following lines of credit:

Bank Overdrafls
Total Facillties 100 100
Corporalte Credit Cards 41 25

The bank overdraft facililies may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the
bank wilhout notice. Interest rates on overdrafts are variable while the rates for loans
are fixed for the period of the loan.
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30th June 2009
Note 12 - COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE

2009
$'000
(a) Capital Commitments

2008
$'000

Capital expenditure committed for at the reporting date but not recognised in the

financial statements as liabilitios:

Mailland Point Bridge 215

215

These expenditures are payable:
Not later than one year 215
Later than one year and nol later than 5 years -
Later than 5 years

215

Commitments for Capital Expenditures relating to Joint Ventures and Parinerships ere set

out in Note 19,

(b) Other Expenditure Commitments

Other expendilure committed for (excluding inventorles) at the reporting date but not

recognised in the financial statements as liabilities:

Audit Services 102 119

Library Services 115 134

Tourism Services 78 o8

Microsoft Licencing Program - 15
205 366

These expenditures are payable:

Not later than one year 153 153

Later than one year and not later than 5 years 142 213

Later than 5 years - -
295 366

{c) Remuneratlon Commitments

Commitments for the payment of salaries and other

remuneration under long-term employment contracts in

existence at reporting date but nol recognised as

liabilities, pavable:

Not later than one year 145 145

Later than one year and not later than 5 years 302 435

Later than 5 years - -
447 580
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2009

Note 13 - STATEMENT OF PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT

Amounts
Unrestricted Current Ratio
Unrestricted Current Assets* $4.435
Current Liabililies not relating to Restricted Asseis $1,225
Debt Service Ratlo
Net Debt Service Cost* $263
Operaling Revenue* $9,065
Rate & Annual Chargas
Coverage Ratio
Rates & Annual Charges Revenues $3,743
Revenue from continulng operations $16,103
Rates & Annual Charges
Outstanding Percentage
Rates & Annuai Charges Qutstanding $394
Rates & Annual Charges Collectible $4,221
Building & Infrastructure
Renewals Ratlo
Asset renewals* 1,049
Depreciation, Amortisation, Impairment $871

2009

Indicators

3.62:1

3%

23%

9.33%

120%

*  Detailad methods of calculation of these indicafors is defined in the Code.

2008

1.24:1

6%

26%

11.19%

59%

2007

0.64:1

7%

29%

6.45'%

74%
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2009

Note 14 - INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Council does not hold Investment Properties
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2009

Note 15 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Council's activities expose |t to a variety of financial risks including price risk, credit risk, liquidlly risk and interest rate risk.
All financial instruments are denominated in Australian dollars, and hence currency risk does nol apply. Since August 2007
Council has been caught in the world credit crisis thal has subsequently increased the credit and liquidity risk significantly.

Financial risk management is carried out by Councils Finance section in accordance with policies approved by Council and
in accordance with statutory requirements, and seeks lo attain diversification, and maximise revenue while protecting the
corpus of the funds invested. To manage interest rate risk council invested in a range of approved fixed income securities
and term deposits. Invesimentin fixed incoms securities required speciallst skllls and access lo information not available
to councils slaff. To manage the financial risks Council outsourced the portfolic adminlstration to Grange Securities who
evaluate and select investment securities other than term depaosils Lhrough an individually manage portfolio contract.

in October 2008, Lehman Brother Bank, lhe parent organisation of Grange Securities advised Councli, Lehman Brothers
Australla would enter voluntary administration. Council ransferred all securities under custodian to ANZ nominees. During
the financlal year Federation was unwound with 100% retum to Councl), the profit being reflected in note 5. Councll has
during the course of 2008-2009 sought legal advice to recover CDOs and FRNs managed in the IMP. Council elected to join
class action on some CDOs where there was some probabllity of resolulion.

Council held tha following financlal Instruments at balance date:

Carrying Value Fair Value
2000 2008 2000 2008
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000
Financlal Assets
Cash and Cash Equlivalents 1,454 2,216 1,454 2,216
Recelvables 1,397 1,274 1,397 1,274
Financlal assels at fair value through profit & loss 828 1,119 828 1,119
Available-for-sale financial assets 4,584 1,959 4,584 1,959
8,263 6,568 8,263 6,568
Financlal Liabilities
Payablas 3,191 2,850 3,19 2,850
Borrowings 2,025 1,892 2,025 1,892
5,216 4,742 5216 4,742

Fair value is estimated as follows:

* Cash & equivalents, recelvables & payables - due to the short-lerm nalure, face value (camying value) approximates
falr value.

* Held-to-maturity investments and borrowings - anlicipated future cash flows discounted by current market Inlerest
rates applicable to assets and liabliitles with similar risk profiles.

* Financial assets at falr value through profit & loss, and available-for-sale - based on quoled market prices (where a
liquid market exists) or independent vaiuation. Particular difficulties ware experienced in assessing fair value of CDOs, and
these have been roported in Note 1.

Cash and cash Equlvalents

Financlal assets at falr value through profit & loss

Avallable-for-sale financlal assets

Held-to-maturity investments

Council's objective Is to maximise its retum on cash and investmente whilst malntaining an adequate level of liquidity and
preserving capital.

The major risk aesociated with invesimenls is price risk — the risk that the capital value of investments may fluctuate due to
changes in market prices, whether these changes are caused by factors specific to Individual financial instruments or thelr
issuers or factors affecting similar Instruments traded in a markel.

Cash and Investments are also subject to Interest rate risk — the risk that movements in interest rates could affect retums.

Another risk associated with cash and investments is credil risk — the risk that a contracting entlty will not complete its
obligations under a financial instrument resulting in a financial loss lo Council.

The investment portfollo is managed in accordance with Council’s policy which complies with the Laocal Government Act &
Regulatlons, and the Minister's Order. The investment pollcy is reviewed regularly, and monthly reports provided to Councll
in accordance with section 625 of the Act.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2009

Note 15 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont)

The investment portiolio is managed so as 1o provide adequate liquidity at all limes, particularly during the periods between
the quarterly receipt of rates instalments and grants. In addition, Council has access to overdrafl facilities set out in Note 11.
Since investment holdings in CDOs and FRNs represent approximately 17% of Councll's surplus funds at any one lime,
Council has delermined to hold the current FRNs to maurity and pursue legal action in respecl to losses incurred with CDO
obligallons. Council also determined thal the CDOs would be liquidated with the most appropriate retums.

Councll's portfolic is invested in preducts ihat are subject to price risk, principally CDOs. Council viewed the loss in markel
value - which has been recognised in these reports - as deriving principally from a lack of liquidity in the market. Council has
determined to retaln these financial instruments on a long term basis, and revlewing its liquidily projections quarteriy so to
confirm with this strategy. Council expacis to recoup the majority of the amounts of principal and interesl over the life of the
investmenl, but with a deterioration in the quality of the securilies over the financial year have engaged legal and financial
speciallsts to assisl councll in managing the increased default risk. Council has some CDO's thal are at a higher risk of
defaulting but no advice that they have formally defaulted has been received and council confinues to receive regular
Interest payments.

Due to the lack of markat activity and reluctance of institutions to disclose Information, rellable CDC valuations have been
very difficult to obtain. As no reliable valuation method was avallable, Councll has estimated the worth of the financial
Instruments on the basis of probable retum and actual income being recelved.

The remalnder of Council's Investment portfolio consists of deposits at fixed and variable Interest rates, generally for periods
of lesa than 120 days. Whilst these are subject to Interest rale risk, this is minimlsed by the short term of the financial
assets held.

Interest Sensltivity Analysis 2009 2008
$'000 $'000

Impact of a 10% (2008 30%) movement In price of Investmeants

(for assets subject to price risk only)

- Equity 83 923

- Income Statement 83 923

impact of a 1% change in interest rates on cash & Invesiments

- Equity 54 K]
- Income Statement 54 31
Recelvables

Credit risk on recelvables for rates, annual charges and service charges made under sectlon 502 is minimisad as these are
secured over the subject land. The security extends to interest levied for late payment.

Other receivables are subject to a range of credit risk minimlsation procedures as appropriate, varying from credit checks to
apeclfic security pledges. Council is not materlally exposed to any Individual debtor, and credit risk exposure |s
concentrated within the Council boundaries in the State of New South Wales. There are no material receivables that have
besn subject to re-negotiation of repayment terms.

Councll receives regular summary reporis of receivables dus, and detalled reports where appropriate.

At reporting dats, all amounts recelvable were reviewed, and adequate allowance made for amounts considered doubtful.

2009 2008
$'000 $'000
Parcentage of Rales & Annual Charges
- Current T2% 73%
- Overdue 28% 27%
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2009

Note 15 - FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont)

Payables

Borrowings

Payables and borrowings are subject to liquidity risk - the risk that Insufficient funds may be on hand to meet payment
obligations as they fall due. The investment partfolio is managed so as to provide adequate liquidity at all times, parficularly
during the periods between the quarterly recelpt of rales Inslalments and grants. In addilion, Council has access to
overdraf facilities sel out in Note 12.

Liquidity Sensitivity Table
The contractual undiscounted cash flows of Council's payables and bormowings are shown below:
2000 Due Total
Contractua C\a{rr;ylng
‘000 <1year 2-Syears >5years [ alue
Payables 2,305 886 - 3,191 KRT|
Borrowings 209 1,816 - 2,025 2,025
2,514 2,702 - 5,216 5,216
2008 Due Total Carrvin
Contractual Vgly g
'000 <iyear 2-5years >5years Cash Flows ue
Payables 2,182 698 - 2,850 2,850
Borrowings 88 1,804 - 1,892 1,892
2,240 2,502 - 4,742 4,742

Borrowings are also subject to Interest rate risk - the risk that changes in interest rates could adversaly affect funding costs.
Councll manages this risk by ganarally borrowing long term, commonly at rates fixed for the duration of the loan, Bank
overdraft and less than 10% of borrowings are at variable rates; the associated interest rate risk is not consldered material.

The following interest rates were applicable to Councll's borrowings at balance date:

2009 2008
Witd ave Wid ave
Interest Balance interest Balance
rate rate
Overdraft 1.25% - -
Loans - fixed Interest rale 6.35% 2,025 7.1% 1,892

2,025 1,892
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2009

Note 16 - SIGNIFICANT VARIATIONS FROM ORIGINAL BUDGET

Council's original budget comprised part of the Management Plan adopted by Council on 29th June 2008, The
original projections on which the budget was based have been affected by decisions and new grant programs
initialed by Stale and Federal Governments, by the weather, and by decisions made by the Councll.

This Nole sets oul the principal variations between the originat Budget and Actual results for the Stalement of
Financial Performance Cash Flow Statement and Note 2 Functions.

Further information of the nalure and amount of all variations is available from the Councll office upon request.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

1 Income

1.1 Rates and Extra Charges (Unfavourable — 7%)

Penslon rebates granted by council of $103k were omitted from the original budget. Domeslic Waste
charges were budgeled in total lo annual charges instead of being allocated to annual charges and user
charges which contributed to the unfavourable result in rates and extra charges and the favourable result in
user charges and fees.

1.2 User Charges and Fees (Favourable — 36%)

User feas of §480k for resident fees for McMaugh Gardens Aged Care Centre were budgeted under Grants
and contributlons.

1.3 Interest and Investments revenue (Unfavourable — 48%)

Investment retums were in line with original budgsl estimates. The conlinving volatliity of markets due to the
ongoing global financial crisis resulted In Council recognising a further deterioration in the mark to market
adjustment on Investments which resulted in an unfavourable adjustment of $283,378.

1.4  Other Operating Revenues (Favourable - 21%)})

Insurance claima of $36k were received for McMaugh Gardens which were not anticlpated when the original
budget was compiled.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 Junae 2009

Note 16 - Significant Variations from Original Budget (cont)

2 Expenses

2.1 Materlals & Contracts (Favourable - 11%)

Council recorded a favourable variance in materials and contracts as a resull of tightened budget conlrols
across all functions of Council although expenditure was generally In line with expectation.

1.2 Borrowing Costs (Unfavourable — 32%)
Bormrowing costs were understated In the original budgel in the area of Transport and Communication.

13  Depreclation & Amortisation (favourable — 11%)

Councll recorded a favourable variance in depreciation expenditure, particularly in the area of roads. This can
be attributed to the revaluation of roads assets and change In useful lives.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2009

Note 16 - Significant Variations from QOriginal Budget (cont)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

3

31

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

4
4.1

Operating Actlvitles

Rates & Annual Charges (Unfavourable - 5%)

Penslan rebates granted by council of $103k were omitied from the original budget. Domestic Waste
charges were budgeted in lolal to annual charges instead of being allocated to annual charges and user
charges which contributed to the unfavourable resull in rales and extra charges and ihe favourable result in
user charges and fees

User Charges & Fees (Favourable — 43%)

User fees of $490k for resident fees for McMaugh Gardens Aged Care Centre were budgsted under Grants
and contributions. Domestic waste charges which included $67k of user charges were budgsted in total to
rates and annual charges.

Investments income (Unfavourable - 40%)

Investment retums were in line with original budget estimates which were based on estimated Interest rate
retuns on overnight and short term deposits. The continuing volatility of markets due lo the ongoing global
financlal crisis resulted In Council recognising a further daterloration in the mark to market adjustment an
investments which resulted In an unfavourable adjustment of $283,378.

Grants & Contributions (Favourable - 11%)

In many instances, the actual amount of grants recelved depends on decisiens made by State and Federal
governments after the original Budget was adopled.

Major varialions occurred in grants recsived for the following purposes:

- Community Infrastructure funding {$271k)
- Early remittance of 2009-2010 Financial Asslstance Granl ($484k)

Other Operating Receipts (Favourable — 22%)

Insurance claims of $36k were received for McMaugh Gardens which were not anticipated when the original
budget was complled.

Other Operating Payments {Unfavourable — 20%)

The variance in other operating payments results from the Incluslon of GST In the cash flow
statement.

Investing/Financing Actlvities

Proceeds from Property Plant & Equipment (Unfavourabile — 16%)

All plant and equipment identified for sale or trade was disposed of during the year with proceeds not
reaching original budget expectation.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2009

Note 16 - Significant Variations from Original Budget (cont)

4.2 Proceeds from the sale of Investment Securities {Favourable — 200%)

Federatlon was unwound during the 2008/09 financlal year which returned $200k representing 100% of
Council’s original investment.

4.3 Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment (Favourable 16%)

Survey Total Station equipment with a budget of $50k was not purchased. Other planl and equipment was
purchased for less than the original budget estimales.

4.4 Purchase of Investment securities (Unfavourable — 2625%)

Surplus funds which were nol originally budgeted for, were invested in short term deposits to increase
interast retums.

4.5 Proceeds from Borrowings & Advances (Favourable — 310%)
$300k was Included In "grants & contributions® in the original budget.

4.6 Proceeds from Retirement Home Contrlbutions {(Favourable — 106%)
Proceeds from Ratirement Home Contributions were not originally budgeted for.

4.7 Repayment of Borrowings & Advances (Favourable — 14%)
Repaymant of borrowings was overstated in the original budget.

4.8 Repayment of Retirement Home Contributions (Unfavourable — 20%)

Repayment of Retiremenl Home Contributions were not orginally budgeted for.
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for the year ended 30 June 2009

Note 16 - Significant Variations from Original Budget (cont)

NOTE 2 (a)

5

51

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

Functlons

Governance (Favourable 14%)

Local government elections which were budgeted at $59k In the original budget were not held resulting In a
saving of $43k.

Administration (Favourable — 124%)

The original budget was split between operating and capital projects.

Public Order & Safety (Unfavourable 10%)

The unfavourable result is mainly the result of expenditure exceeding budget on RFS vehicles with repairs
and maintenance exceeding budget by $14k and fuel by $4k.

Health {Unfavourable 16%)

Income from Slatutory/Regulatory Fees and Inspection Fees was lowar than the original budgel with
expenditure in line with expectations.

Community Services & Education {369% Favourable)

Income exceeded the original budget estimates In the following areas:

Grant Income (infrastructure grants) $70k
Client fees and contributions $179Kk
Interest Ravenues $91k

Tighlened budgel controls were also implemented al McMaugh Gardens Aged Care Centre lo reduce
expenditure which contributed to the favourable result in community services,

Housing & Community Amenitles (Unfavourable 20%)

Income was lower than the original budget wilh expected Income from fees and sale of goods being $56k less
than budgeted.

Water Supplies {Unfavourable - 34%)

Income from water supplles was less than originally budgeted with water user charges being lass than
eslimated by $44k. In addition, Council recognlsed a further delerioration in the mark to market adjustment
on water fund investmants which was not included in the original budget estimates.

Sewerage Services (Favourable — 380%)

Sewerage depreciation expenditure was overstated in the original budget which has lead to the favourable
variance between the aclual figures and the original budget .

Recreatlon & Culture (Favourable — 36%)

Recreation and Cultura has shown a favourable variance of $173k which Is attributable to the receipt of grant
funding through the Fedsral Economic Stimulus funding which was not included in the original budget
estimales.

Mining Manufacturing & Construction (Favourable - 75%)
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2009

Note 16 - Significant Variations from Original Budget {cont)

Planned activities In the area of Mining wera not camied out.
511 Transport & Communlcation {Unfavourable — 48%)

The original budget was split between capital and operating projects.
5.12. Economic Affalrs (Unfavourable — 102%)

Alllance costs of $36k and promotion/publicily costs of 10k were not included In the original budget.
Material and consumables of $45k, Salaries and employee costs of $35k and depreciation expense of $20k
were over the orlginal budget estimates which contributed to the unfavourable resuilt.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2009

Note 17 - STATEMENT OF CONTRIBUTION PLANS

SUMMARY OF CONTRIBUTIONS
CONTRIBUTIONS | INTEREST| EXPENDE [INTERNAL[ HELD AS EST £EST, EST.

OPENING | RECEIVED DURING | EARNED D BORROW-| RESTR- FUTUﬁE WORKS OVER/

BALANCE YEAR DURING | DURING INGS ICTED CONTRIBS ouT- (UNDER)
PURPOSE CASH |NON-CASH| YEAR YEAR {lo)ffrom | ASSET STANDING| FUNDING

$'000 $'000 $:000 $°000 $'0C0 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000

Roads 173 23 - 6 (40} B 162 - 162 .
Traffic Facllilies 4 1 - B - - 5 5 .
Community facllities 40 1 . 1 - - 42 60 102 60
Other 14 2 - - - - 16 18 -
Sublotal $94 under plansg 231 27 - 7 (40) - 225 ] 285 80
Total Contributions 231 27 - 7 {40} - 225

Note: The above summary of contibulion plans represents the lotal of Council's individual conlribution plans. Individual plan details

are shown below,

CONTRIBUTION PLAN - DCP ZONE #1 RURAL - INVERGOWRIE

CONTRIBUTIONS |INTEREST | EXPENDE | INTERNAL | HELD AS EST EST. EST.
OPENING | RECEVED DURING | EARNED D BORROW-| RESTR- FUTUI'RE WORKS OVER/
BALANCE YEAR DURING | DURING INGS ICTED CONTRIBS ouT- (UNDER}
PURPOSE CASH {MON-CASH| YEAR YEAR {to}from ASSET STANDING| FUNDING
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
Roads 49 - - 2 {34) B 17 - 17 B
Traffic Facilitias 4 1 o - - - 5 - 5 -
Cammunity lacilities 40 1 - 1 . - 42 60 102 -
Other 9 2 - . - - 11 . 14 o
Total 102 4 - 3 {34} - 75 60 135 -
CONTRIBUTION PLAN - DCP ZONE #1 - RURAL
CONTRIBUTIONS |INTEREST|EXPENDE } INTERNAL | HELD AS EST EST. EST.
OPENING | RECEIVED DURING | EARNED D BORROW-| RESTR- FUTUF-{E WORKS OVER/
BALANCE YEAR DURING | DURING INGS ICTED CONTRIBS ouT- (UNDER)
PURPOSE CASH [NON-CASH| YEAR YEAR {\o)from ASSET STANDING| FUNDING
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $000 $'000
Cther 5 - - - - - 5 - 5 o
Total 5 - - - - - 5 - 5 -
CONTRIBUTION PLAN - DCP ROAD MAINTENACE ROYALTIES
CONTRIBUTIONS [INTEREST| EXPENDE { INTERNAL | HELD AS EST EST. EST.
OPENING | RECEIVED DURING | EARNED D BORROW-| RESTR- FUTU!‘RE WORKS OVER/
BALANCE YEAR DURING | DURING INGS ICTED CONTRIBS OouT- {UNDER)
PURPOSE CASH [NON-CASH| YEAR YEAR (to)from | ASSET |~ STANDING| FUNDING
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Roads 124 23 1] 4 -6 0 145 0 145
Total 124 23 4 (8) 145 145
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2009

Note 18 - CONTINGENCIES & ASSETS & LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED IN
THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The following assets and liabillties do not qualify for recognition in the Statement of Financial Position bul knowledge
of those items is consldered relevant 1o user of the financial report in making and evaluating decisions about the
allocation of scarce resources.

1.

DEFINED BENEFIT SUPERANNUATICN PLAN

The Local Government superannualion scheme - Pool B (the Scheme) is a defined benefit plan that has been
deemed to be a "Multi-employer fund® for purposes of AASB119. Sufficlent information under AASB119 Is not
avallable to account for the Scheme as a defined bensfit plan, because the assets to the Schema are pooled
together for all employers. The amount of employer contributions lo the defined benefit section of the Local
Government Superannuation Scheme and recognised as an expense for the year ending 30 June 2000 was
$147,001, The las valuation of the Scheme was performed by Mr Mariin Stevenson BSc, FIA, FIAA on 18th
June 2007 and covers the pericd ended 30 June 2006. Howsver the position is monltored annually and the
actuary has estimated thal as at 30th June 2003 a deficil exists. Effective from | July 2009, employers are
required to contribute at twice the "notional™ or long term cost for a pariod of up to ten years In order to rectlfy
this deficlt. The share of this deficit that can be broadly attributed to the employer was estimated to be in the
order of $625,088 as al 30 June 2009,

POTENTIAL INSURANCE LOSSES

Councll is a mulli-purpose organisalion providing a large range of building, parks infrastruclure, playgrounds
and other facilities accessibla to the public, At any time, it Is likely that claims will have been made against
Councl! that remain unsettled.

Council insures against all known insurable risks using a range of insurance policles, each of which is subject
to a deductible "Insurance excess", the amount of which varies according to lhe class of insurancs.

Councll has recognised the potential losses arising from claims known at reporting date based on average
historical nat cost (including insurance excess) of similiar types of claims. Other potential claims not reported
to Council may have existed at reporting date.

2.1. Statewlde Mutual
Council Is a member of Statewide Mutual, an organisalion formed for the purchase and management of
certaln Insurances on behalf of its members. Councit Is llable to contribute its proportionate share of
any shortfall arising through the schema.

Stalewide Mutual's Directors report that the scheme has accumulated surpluses of $22.7M as at 30
June 2009. They also report, however, (hat it is impossible to predict the jong term consequences of
ceraln proposed amendments to Lhe law relating to public llabllity and professional negligence.

During the period 1895-1997 a portion of Councils public risk insurance cover was insured or re-insured
with a member of the HIH Insurence group of companies. At reporting date thers are no known claims
outstanding for that period.

STATECOVER MUTUAL Ltd
Council has been a member of Statecover Mutual Ltd, a corporation formed for the purchase and management
of workers compensalion Insurances on behalf of its members, since 1 July 2001.

Statecover has issued shares with no par value and may make calls on its members to mest trading losses
and lo comply with prudential requirements. There Is no recognised market for the sale of Slatecover shares.

Council is of lhe opinion that there is insufficient certalnty of recovery of capital contributed $30,621.55 (20086:
$30,621.55; 2005: $20,396.30) to qualify for recognition as an asset. No calls have besen made in respect of
the Council's shares for the current reporting period.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the yoar ended 30 June 2009

Note 18 — Contingencies & Assets & Liabilities not Recognised in the Statement of Financial
Position {cont)

4, LEGAL EXPENSES
Council is the planning consent authority for its area under the Environmental Planning & Assessment Act (as
amended). Pursuant to that Acl, certain persons aggrieved by a planning decision of lhe Council may appeal
to he Land & Environment Court. It is the Court's normal practice that partles bear their own legal costs. At
the dale of these reports, Council had no nolice of any appeals agalnst planning decisions made prior 1o
reporling dale. All known costs have been recognised, but the amounl of furlher costs cannot be known undil
the appeals are determined.

5. RURAL FIRE FIGHTING ASSETS
Council has title to, and is the registered owner of 8 rural fire appliances and assoclated rural fire fighting
equipment. These assels are under the control of the Rural Fire Services to enable that Department to provide
the bushfire prolection defences set out in thelr Service Level Agreement with Councll, and accordingly have
not been recognised In these reports.

In accordance with normal Rural Fire Service funding arrangements, Council continues to contribute to the
costs of maintenance of this equipment.

6. CENTRAL NORTHERN LIBRARIES
The Uralla Shire Councll Is a member of the Central Northern Libraries Group. Thls group operates under the
Ceniral Northemn Library Regional Library Agreament mada on 1 July 2005 and administered by the Tamworth
Regional Council on behalf of the six members. Clause 7.1 of the Agreement states "Tamworth Regional
Councll shall own the assets acquired from Central Northemn Regional Liorary's budget subject to the
‘relmbursement rights' held by each of the Delegating Councils as provided by thls clause.”

Clause 7.3 states “Upon the terminalion of this agreement, a proportion of the assets identified In the asset
regisler shall be distributed o the Delegating Councils. The method for delermining the asset distribution to
each Delegating Councll Is specified in Schedule 4 of this Agreement.” Schedule 4 determines that the
distribution of the net assets shall be apporlioned in the ratio of the contributions made in the three preceding
years or lhe current life of the exisling agreement. The net assets of the Central Northem Regicnal Library at
30 June 2009 was not available. Council expects the net assets of the llbrary to be In line with the previous
year's results ($820,306 — 2008) and the percentags of coniributlon by the Uralla Shire Council is 6.65%.
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2009

Note 19 - JOINT VENTURES & ASSOCIATED ENTITIES

Council does not have any material Joint Ventures
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2009

Note 20 - RETAINED EARNINGS & REVALUATION RESERVES

RETAINED EARNINGS

As previously reported (beginning of year)
Transfers from assel revaluation reserve {IPP&E)
Correclion of errors - see below

Commencement of new accounting standard

- AASB 1051 Land under roads - see below

Net operaling result for the year

At end of year

REVALUATION RESERVES
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
Balance at beginning of reporting period
Add: Revaluation Increments transferred to the reserve
relating to:
Land

- Councll owned (freehold)

- Buildings

- Water Infrastruciure

- Sewerage Infrastructure

- Roads
Subtotal
Less: Revaluation decrements transferred from lhe
reserve relating to:
Land
- Council owned (freehold)
Sublotal

Baiance at end of reporting period

2009 2008
$'000 $'000
77,132 74,912
(13,617) 1,976
3,028 244
66,543 77.132
25,945 16,458
= 2,084
. 6,327
476 757
201 319
184,264 -
184,041 9,487
210,686 T 25045
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

NOQTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2009

Note 20 - REVALUATION RESERVES & RETAINED EARNINGS (CONT)

2009 2008
$'000 $'000

Nature and purpose of reserves

Infrasiructure, property, plant & equipment revaluation reserve

Used to record increments (net of decremenis} on lhe revaluation of infrastructure, property, plant &
equipmenl,

MOVEMENTS IN RETAINED EARNINGS
Correction of errors In previous years
(N Cerlain invesiments conlaining embedded derivatives were previously
incorrectly calegorised as avsilable-for-sale instead of fair vaiue through
profit & loss. As falr value equalled carrying valuethere was no effecl on the
Income Statement, and the categorisation has been corrected on Note 6. NIL

mn

In previous years Council had nol conslstently reviewed the
estimates of usefullives of cartain assets. In the course of the
revalualions carried out In the current reporting period, it was
found thet the comblned effect resulted In a significant
reduction in the depreciallon that had previously been charged.
It was found to be impracticable to calculate the distorlion
occurring in each of the previous years, and the adjusiment

has been made to currenl year balances. -
- Buiidings - 1,876
- Roads (13,617)

(i) In the course of the revalualions carried out In the current
reporting period, it was found that a number of buildings had
nol praviously been recognised.
An estimale has been made of the depreciation (hat should
have been charged in the previous year had lhey been
correctly recognised al lhe appropriasle ime, and the
comparalive amounts have been adjusted accordingly. -

Commencement of AASB 10571 - Land under roads

As at 1 July 2008, Councll determined that it was of the
opinion that it was not posslble to rellably measure ihe fair
value of land under roads previously acqulred, and thal It was
impraclicable lo determine the original cost of acquisition. =

In accordance with AASB 1051.9, the camying value of land
under roads previously recognised has been made agalnst the
opening balance of retainad earnings.
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2009

Note 23 - EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

Decision on Counter Swap Defauits.

In October 2002 Lehman Brother International ( Europe ) established a mult issuer
secured obligation programme. The purpose of the programme was to issue noles to
investors. The issuers lhat made up the Dante programme included Zircon Finance
Limited and Beryl Finance Limited established by Lehman Brothers Group in the
Republic of Ireland or the Cayman Islands.

The Trustee of the notes is the Bank of New York Mellon Corporate Trustee Services
Ltd, incorporated in England.

On the 15lh September 2008, Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc, the parent company of
Lehman Brothers Group, applied for Chapter 11 Bankruptcy code in the United
States.

On the 13th May and 9th June 2009, Perpetual and Belmont issued Part 8 Claims
against the trustee, for orders designed to procure the realisation of the collaieral held
by the lrustes, In respect of each note, in favour of note holders. Lehman Brothers
contested these claims and did not accept that note holders are entitled to the priority
clamed. The Trustees have decided to not act until the fegal situation has been
determined.

In July 2009, the High Court of Justice London, the Chancellor of the Court ruled in
favour of the note holders. The ruling outlined that the collateral held by the trustee
Bank of New York Mellon should be returned to bond holders. Council has $350,000
in COD's affected by this case. Leman Brothers Inc has lodged an appeal against the
ruling. If the Lehman Brothers appeal is succaessful, it appears thal it will have the
effecl of invalidating the payments to note holders.

On the 25 Seplember 2009, the Full Court of the Federal Court of Australia
determined that a Deed of Company Amangement (DOCA) entered into by the
creditors of Lehman Brothers Australia Limited on 28 May 2009 is invalld. On 2
October 2009 Justice Rares of the Federal Court made the following orders in respect
to the declslon of the Full Court:

{a) the Deed of Company Arrangement dated 12 June 2009 is declared vold;

{b} Lehman Brothers Australia Limited (Lehman Australia) be wound up; and

{c) Neil Singleton and Stephen Parbery be appointed liquldators of Lehman
Australia (sublect to the filing consents to act as liquidators).

Neil Singleton and Stephen Parbery, as the firm of PPB Pty Ltd, have advised that
they are proceeding to delermine the liabilitles of the Lehman Auslralia. Defendants
have until 23 October 2008 to seek leave to appeal the declsion of the Federal Court
to the High Court. Council has lodged a clalm of $669,035 for losses sustained from
an Investment of $1,150,000 in Collateralised Debt Obligations (CDOs) under the
Individually Managed Portfolic managed by Lehman Australia (formerly Grange
Securities} on behalf of the Uralla Shire Council. The estimates of recovery under a
successful claim range from 9% to 30% of the losses.
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2009

Note 23 - EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE
New England Strateglc Alllance of Counclls

The Charter of the New England Strategic Alliance of Councils (NESAC) expires on
30 Seplember 2009 and was due for renegoliation and renewal. At a meeting of
Council held on Monday 28 August 2009 Council resolved to not renew its
membership from 1 October 2009.

This decision was arrived at following a perlod of review of the benefits and costs,
workshops, independent reviews and survey of the Uralla Shire Councl's Community
attitude towards the Independent NESAC Restructure Review (The Finch Report)
principal recommendation of a voluntary amalgamation of the NESAC Councils.

Council is determined to continue structural reform by outsourcing services by Shared
Services not only within the public sector but also the private sector. The initial
activity to be outsourced will be a hosted |IT Solution for the Uralla Shire Council.
Initial indicatlons are that a considerable saving will be achieved over the current
shared service cost through NESAC, This amount is expected to be no less than
$100,000 per annum from Lhe second year of the five year coniract.
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30th June 2009

NOTE 26 - REINSTATEMENT, REHABILITATION AND RESTORATION LIABILITIES

Tip remedlation

Council is required by law to restore the present tip site at Uralla o parklandffarmland al the end of its useful
lifa in 2017. The projected cosl of this restoration In Is $584K, based on feasibility and englneering studies
and has been discounted to its present value at 4.5% per annum being Lhe estimated consumer price index.

At beginning of year

Amounts capitilised to Tip asset
-New distributlons

-Revieed cost

-Revised life

~-Revised discount rate

Amortised of discount - expensed to borrowing costs
At end of year

2000
$'000

2008
$'000

481
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL Armidak

92 Rusden Street
PO Bux ti4
Arrdale NSW 2350

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT

P61 2 6TT3 3400

3417(2) — Report on the general purpose financial report £ 461267729957

¢ armidale@ fornyths.com.au

Forryds Bumess Servces Pry Lad

Qualificd audit opinion ADN 8 U T8 40

In our opinion except for the effects on the finandal statements of the matter referred to in the
parageaph below titled Basis for qualified Auditor’s Opinion:

@)

()

©
C)

the Council's accounting records have been kept in accordance with the requirements of
the Local Government Act 1993, Chapter 13 part 3 Division 2; and

the financial reporc

0] has been presented in accordance with the requirements of this Division;

(i is consistent with the Coundil's accounting records;

(i)  presents fairly the Council's financial position, the results of its operations and its
cash flows; and

(tv)  are in accordance with applicable Accounting Standards snd other mandatory
professional reporting requirements in Australia,

all information relevant to the conduct of the audit has been obtained; and

there are no material deficiencics in the accounting records or financial report that have
come to light during the course of the audit.

This opinion must be read in conjunction with the rest of our audit report,

Basis for Qualified Auditor’s Opinion

Since July 2007, global finandial markets have experienced a period of high volatility led by events
in the US housing market, particularly sub prime loans, which has impacted the value,
recoverability, liquidity, cash flows and rates of return of many financial assets inchuding
Collateralised Debt Obligations (CDOs), Equity Linked Notes (ELNs) and certain other Managed
Funds.

Knowledge with integrity

Liability limited by & scheme spproved under the Profcasicna) Standaeds Legislution

ARMIDALE | COONABARABRAN | GUNNEDAH | TAMWORTH



At 30 June 2009, Uralla Shire Council’s investment portfolio totalled $5.4 million of which $0.8
million have been impacted by this market volatlity. The impact on individual secudties varies
depending on their degree of exposure to affected markets.

At 30 June 2009, Uralla Shire Council’s investment portfolio included CDO securities totaling
$0.8 million. Many of these securities do not have market values that are independently quoted
and they are not widely traded. Independent market valuations are not readily available and in
many cascs, valucs arc assesscd based on cstimates from valuation models for which there is
limited madket evidence available to verify their reasonableness in the cumrent economic
environment. Further, the ongoing volatlity of financial marketa and legal actions against
Lehman Brothers creates greater uncertainty in the valuation process and detertnination of future
cash flows that can be attributed to these securities.

These circumstances have resulted in our inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit cvidence
to satisfy oursclves as to the fair value and recoverability of $0.8 million of Uralla Shire Council’s
total investment portfolio. The maximum impact on the operating surphus and net asscts is the
carrying amount of these investments.

Scope and summary of our role

The financial report and Council’s responsibility

The financial report comprises the Balance Sheet, Income Statement, Cash Flow Statement,
accompanying notes to the fnancial statements, and the Statement by Councillors and
Management in the approved form as required by Section 413(2) of the Local Government Act
1993 for Uralla Shire Council (the Council), for the year ended 30 June 2009,

The Cosndil is nsponsibie for the proparation and trus and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance
with the Local Government Act 1993, Thir includes responsibility for the maintenance of adequats aconnting
records and internal controls that are drrigned 1o prevent and detsct fiand and error, and for the accounting pobicies
and accounting estinates inberent in the finoncial report.

Audit approach

We conducted an independent audit of the finandal report in order to express an opinion on
them to the Council Qur audit was conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards,
in order to provide reasonable assurance as to whether the fAnancial report is free of material
misstatemnent. Our audit responsibility does not extend to the Original Budget figures included in
the Income Staternent, Cash Flow Statemeat and the Original Budget disclosures in Notes 2(a)
and 16 to the financial statements and accordingly, we express no opinion on them. The nature
of an audit is influcnced by factors such as the use of professional judgement, selective testing, the
inherent limitations of internal control, and the availability of persuasive mther than conclusive
evidence. Therefore, an audit cannot puarantee that all material migstatements have been detected.

We performed procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report presents
fairly, in accordance with the Local Govemnment Act 1993, Accounting Standards and other
mandatory financial reposting requirements in Australia, a view which is consistent with our
undentanding of the Council’s finandial position, and its performance as represented by the
results of its operations and cash flows.



We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures, which included;

. examining, on a test basis, information to provide evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the finandial report, and

. assesaing the appropriatencss of the accounting policies and disclosures used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Couadl

When this audit report is included in an Anoual Report, our procedures include reading the other
information in the Annual Report to determine whether it contains any material inconsistencies
with the financial report.

While we considered the effectiveness of management’s intemal controls over financial reporting
when determining the nature and extent of our procedures, our audit was not designed to provide
assurance on internal controls.

Our audit did not involve an analysis of the prudence of business decisions made by Councillors
of management.

Independence
In conducting our audit, we followed applicable independence requirements of Awustralian
professional cthical pronouncements.

f;myb‘k

Parxyths Business Services Pyp Lid

AR ot

Paul R Comall
Principal

29 October 2009
111 Faulkner Street Ammidale

Liability limited by the Accountants Scheme, approved under the Profiessional Standards Ace 1994 (NSW)”
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Dear Mr Mayor

AUDIT OF ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

We are pleased to report that we have completed the audit of Council’s records for the year ended
30th June 2009 snd have reported on the general purpose financial report and special purpose
financial report as required by the provisions of Section 417(2) of the Local Government Act 1993,

Under Section 417(3) of the Local Government Act we are also required to report on the conduct of
the andit.

Audit Objectives

The ovenll objectives of the audit were to cnable us to form an opinion as to whether, in all
material respects, the general purpose financial statements:

¢ were presented faitly in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1993
and prescribed Regulations and the Australian Accounting Standards; and

¢ preseated 2 view which was condistent with our understanding of the Council's financial
position, the results of its opetations and its cash Aows.

Scope of the Audit

Audit procedures were primarily aimed at achieving audit objectives and did not seek to confirm for
management purposes the effectiveness of all intemal controls. The planning of the audit
procedures was based on an assessment of the risk of the existence of errors and/or irregularities
which could materially affect the financial statements.



29 Oct 09

The Council is responsible for preparing a financial report that gives a truc and fair view of the
financial position and performance of the Council, and that complies with Accounting Standards in
Australia, in accordance with the Local Govemnment Act 1993. This includes responsibility for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal controls that are designed to prevent and
detect fraud and error, and for the accounting policies and accounting estimates inherent in the
financial report.

We conducted an independent audit of the financial report in ordes to express an opinion on them to
the Coundl Our audit was conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, in order to
provide reasonable assurance as to whether the financial report is free of matenial misstatement. Cur
audit responsibility does not extend to the Onginal Budget figures included in the Income Statement
and Cash Flow Statement and the Original Budget disclosures in Notes 2(a) and 16 to the Fnancial
statements and accordingly, we express no opinion on them. The nature of an audit is influenced by
factors such as the use of professional judgement, selective testing, the inherent limitations of internal
control, and the availability of persuasive rather than conclusive evidence. Therefore, an audit cannot
guarantee that all material misstatetments have been detected.

We performed procedutes to assess whether in all material respects the financial report presents
fairly, in accordance with the Local Govemment Act 1993, Accounting Standards and othet
mandatory financial reporting requitcments in Australia, a view which is consistent with our
understanding of the Council’s financial position, and its performance as represented by the results of
its operations and cash flows.

We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures, which inchuded:

* examining, on a test basis, information to provide evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the fnancial report, and

* assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and disdosures used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Council

While we considered the effectiveness of management's intemnal controls over financal reporting
when detenmining the nature and extent of our procedures, our audit was not designed to provide
assurance on intemal controls.

We performed procedures to assess whether the substance of business transactions was accurately
reflected in the financial report. These and other procedures did not include consideration or
judgement of the appropriateness or reasonablencss of the business plans or strategics adopted by the
Council.

We have issued our qualified audit opinion as required by Section 417(2) of the Local Government
Act 1993 on the basis of the foregoing comments,

Additional Reporting Requirements

In accordance with Section 417(3) of the Local Govemnment Act we make the following comments
in relation to the results and financial trends.
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Uralla Shire Council 29 Oct 09

The Income Statement for the year ended 30th June 2009 discloses the following operating result:

INCOMESTATENENT Bl Avtinil
HNupr Jhny
L1 i ]

INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Rates & anoual charges 120 3743 3700 12%  -T0%
Usex charges & fees LM 104 2483 -217% 35.6%
Tntezest | e 0 00% -483%
Other severes from ordinacy activitics 276 216 278% 21.6%

Grants & contributions for operating purposcs
Grants & coatributions For capital pursposces
Gain from sale of assets

Total mcome from contimaing operations

8,230 7155 150% 1%
1256 681 844% A2%
457 121 2ZIT™% -62%
14356 122% 42%

EXPENSES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Employer benefits & oncosts 6,219 6332 -1.8% 20%
Borrowing costs 153 144 63% 24.4%
Materisls and contmets 3079 4289 7%  31%
Depreciation & amortisation 1,503 1,838 11.7%% -20.8%
Other expenses from prdinary activities 1,219 1,091  -181% 4.5%
Invstment losses 0 418 0% 00%
Total Expenses from contimuing operations 4112 J3% -1.4%

OPERATING RESULT FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS

NET OPERATING RESULT BEFORE
CAPITAL GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS

2025 244 141.0% 37.8%

{437 5055% 80.6%

Council achieved a surplus before capital
amounts of $1.8m compared to the deficit in
2008 of $0.4m.,

Operating revenue increased as 2 result of higher
grants and contributions for operating and
capital purposes and gains from sale of assets
which were off set by lower user charges and fees.
Grants and contributions have increased as a
result of additional Financial Assistance Grant for
the 2010 year received in June 2009 as part of
State Government economic stimulus measures, L

Further, there were increases in toad and bridge grents for construction as well as aged care and other
community scrvice activities. Sale of assets included better retums on the sale of plant and sale of
investments when market values improved, especially on FRN and CDO investments that had
previously devalued.  User fee revenue reductions arose from lower private works projects.

The decrease in expenses as a result of lower materiala and contracts costs (less private works activity
and increased focus on capital projects in 2009) and no et loss on investments in 2009 (investment
losses of $0.3m were offset by interest income).

Forsyths
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The global credit crisis has continued to have a major impact on credit linked products such as
CDO’s and FRN’s. Cousncil expects to hold most of these investments uatil matusity but events
during the 2009 year and subsequent to balance date have ensured the risk of investment default
remains. At the date of this report it is uncertain which investments may not recover but it is
expected some of the book losses will convert to actual losses in the coming years. ‘The write down
in investments for the 2009 year of $0.3m reflects the continued higher risk of default on these
investments in the market place.

The budget amounts included above are those adopted in the original budget and exclude re-votcs
from the ptevious year and vadations to the budget during the year. The actual operating surplus for
the year of $3m compares with the original budget surphus of $2.2m. The major vasiations between
the acrual results and the original budget are as follows:

¢ Rates and extra charges (unfavourable $0.3m) — pension rebates granted by council were omitted
from the original budget and there was a misallocation between user charges and fees and rates
and annual charges.

*  User charges and fees (favourable §0.5m) — User fees for residents of McMaugh Gardens Aged
Care Cenire were budgeted under Grants and contributions and there was 2 misallocation in the

budget with rates and annual charges.

¢ Investment income — (unfavourable $0.2m) - as a result of the continued investment market
volatility during the year, see above,

® Grants and contributions capital and operating (favourable §0.6m) - the first instalment of the
financtal assistance grant for the 2010 year of §0.5m was reccived in June 2009 in order to bring
forward Council projects as part of State economic stimulus measures,

¢ Depreciation and amortisation (favourable $0.4m) — this is attributable to revaluation of
infrastructure assets which has changed the amount of depreciation charged than previously
budgeted.

Below is 2 comparison of cxpense dissections for the Council for 2009 compared to the Group 10
council average (2008 dats).

Experibe Ditacction Bapenses Dissectian - Group 10 Councils
hilser
; - = il 1%
ACOCATHI N
1% lw_ &
anortisation
. A%
m” Fanplijee ciy
Mlaternds & FTT & 134
cnatracts 2
3
1 contescts el
* ml I-'-

- =

There is a significant variation in the levels of cmployee costs and depreciation compared to the
Group 10 average. We belicve this is due to Council having a lower level of depreciation expense
than other Councils in the group (as it has a smaller level of infrastructure compared to the other
Group 10 Councils) together with the additional emplayee costs associated with sponsoring
Commuuity Service activities.
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The following schedule of assets and liabilities has been extracted from the Balance Sheet as at 30th
June 2009. This schedule discloses the consolidated assets and liabilities of all functions.

2008

b 00 15 o 1 SN | R oo i R 0 Vo e
CURRENT ASSETS
Gash and cash equivalents 1,454 2216 -344%
:1 leresimesits 5412 3078 758%
Rexeivables 1,397 1,168 19.6%
Toventozies 187 168 113%
Oxher 106 92 15.2%
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 8556 672  X3%
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Prpilies R0 | 2,850 120%
Barrowings 20 1,047 8008 T
Provisions 1,159 1375 15T
TOTAL CURRENT LLABILTTIES 4,559 5212 -135%
INET CURRENT ASSETS lwm L4500  1757%
|NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Recetvables - 106 G0%
Infrmstructure, Property Plant & Equipment 76,251 13118 167.9%
TOAMAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 276,251 103,224 167.6%
NON-CURRENT LIAHILITIES
Provision 1,003 732 334%
Borrowings 1,816 245 1149 ¢
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LLABILITIES 2819 1,597 6%
IILEI'ASSEI’S 2N42 w3077 1691%
000 Cash & Tavestments 5000 Borrowings
8,000 3,000 o
7,000 4 -
6,000 2,500
5,000 2,000 -
4,000 < 1,500 4 oy e A0 5 08 e
3,000
2,000 ¢ =r=e=s i’ : 3
1,000 500 1 R S e~ <
1] ~ . ! 0 3 T +
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2005 2005 2007

s |

Net current asscts increased by $2,547,000 or 176% mainly due to cash balance improvements asising
from improved cash flow petformance in 2009 and the receipt of a portion of the 2010 financial
assistance grant of §0.5m.

Borrowings have been refinanced and thercfore mostly shown as non-current in 2009.
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Uralla Shite Council 29 Oct 09

The significant increase in infrastructure, property, plant and equipment of §173.0m is mainly due to
the risc in values from the revaluation of roads, bridges, footpaths, bulk carthworks, water supply
network and sewerage network assets in 2009 to correct over depreciation in prior years for these
assets and increases in replacement value since the last revaluation.

Council has now revalued most of its infrastructure assets to allow it to determine its current
condition and therefore improve the accuracy of deprediation expense in furre yeass.

NET CURRENT ASSETS

The Net Current Assct position at year end is an important financial indicator as it discloses the
working capital available to Council to fund day to day operations and fnance infrastructure and new
community projects. However, included in Current Asscts are assets which age “Restricted” by
regulation or other externally imposed requirements and therefore are not available for other than
their restricted purpose, as outlined below.

To ausces the adequacy of e e e e _,_.-__‘
UNRESTRICTED RATIO working capital after excluding || T e e (e[

all restricted asseen and liabilises. ][ = :ﬂ_ﬁ' 4T 11'.52

T agscas the degree 1o which s = ek =
DIRT SERVICE RATIO revenuct are committed o the |fa-=--——— B

repryment of debr. 1 .

[To rsscan the degree of
RATE COVERAGE RATIO dependence upon revenues from
rates and annual charger.

[To asaces the impact of
uncollecred rates and chaiges on
liquidity and the atdeguacy of
recovery effisets,

OUTSTANDING RATES %

0 asecas the eate at which 2aeny]
ASSET RENEWALS RATIO ure being rencwed ayainst the
eate they ace being depreciared

LIy Yoant
CASH INFLOWS
Upsrstmg Raverpis 16,416 14,767 11 2%
Frocesds faom A seria Salgs 413 246 68 7%
Noed wncnopt af exdwram cmt home howds 196 4317 53 1
Pracrerds fanm puresimech np 111 -52.0%
Frucerds faum Watruwinge Ity 192 6 L.5%
T3 al R CEIFTS VT,537 16,061 9 2%
CASH DUYTFLO Y %
Crperanmg Fapm oy L1.,93F 11,9505 -0 X,
Porcbhose alamvcoim ents J.635 G118 T80 2%
Pwrchoie ol §asgra 1502 Eouta 204 4,
Bepagmeny af Lusny 123! 1H EER L
TUTAL PAYMENTYS 1R, 200 14,477 LI
TOTAL CASH MOVYEMENT -7612 1,674 156 6%
Teotat Cash & tnvcatments on il and (1T} 5,294 2h 74

‘The above table demonstrates that after excluding McMaugh Gardens Hostel, the general function of
working capital balance is in surplus and able to support the internal restrictions it has created as at 30
June 2009. Also, McMaugh Gardens Aged Care net current assets is in surplus and therefore there is
cash resetves outside of the cash nceded to cover bonds commitments to fund operations.

Forsyths
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Council has restricted §1,654,000 in cash to partly fund plant replacements, carry-over projects and
employee entitlements provisions. As there is now positive working capital, we are of the view that
there is now adequate cash to meet both working capital needs and Fund thesc restrictions.

The Code of Accounting Practce requires the mandatory disclosure of certain performance
indicators. These financial indicators are useful in assessing performance, financial position and the
likely financial burden to be placed on ratepayers.

The key financial indicators disclosed in the Financial Statements are:
Ity assess the adequacy of LI - - - - e T A= A o

UNRESTRICTED RATIO working capital attor exchading e e 6 82
all restricted agsets and Rabiliten, | B T 0. —

To asscsathe digrecowhich [y o ———
DEBT SERVICE RATIO revenues are comumiteed to the | bawacaco o e
repayment of debt. i

‘To asgess the degree of

RATE COVERAGIT RATIO dependence upon revenucs from)
rates and annual chorges,

T'o axsess the impact of
uncollected rtes and charges on | | .
Liquidity and the adequacy of o =
recovery effons, :

COUTS TANDING RATES %

To mucas the e at which assrd Jpmmtmeasy SE e el e ]
ASSET RENEWALS RATIO are being renowed againss the
vate they are bong depreciated | [ W Caripd

The unrcstricted ratio excludes all current assets and liabilities that are restricted to specific purposes
such as water, sewer, aged carc, domestic waste management functions and specific purpose
unexpended grants & contrbutions. This mtio is before setting aside cash to fund internal
restrictions relative to the general function. An unrestricted ratio of 3.62 indicates thar for every §1
of cutrent liabilities as at 30 June 2009, which is cxpected to be paid out within the following twelve
months, Council has 3.62 to meet this commitment. As a comparison, Category 10 Councils in 2008
had an average unrestricted mtio of 3.14.

The debt service mtio of 3% has decreased. We note the ratio is lower than the average for similar
sized Councils of 5.87% (2008 data). The low matio reflects an ability for Council to increase its
borrowings to fund infrastructure needs if required.

The outsanding rates ratio decreased compated to prior years as a xesult of increased focus on
collection activities in the year. We believe a ratio of 5% is where Council should aim as patt of its

operating targets,

The asset renewals ratio is a new ratio established by the Department of Local Government from the
2007 year. The rado is to assist readers of the financial statements to assess Council’s performance
with renewing its infrastructure assets against the level of infrastructure asset deterioration (as
represented by depreciation expense). We advise that due to a lack of a definidon in the accounting
code for what is an asset “renewal” that we cannot comment on the accuracy of the ratio disclosed in
the financial statements.

Forsyths
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Based on the above context, the ratio seems to indicate thar Council expended slightly less on assct
reacwals (81%) compared to the estimated asset deterioration over the past three years, In essence,
Council’s overall infrastructure condition, in financial tetms, reduced slightly across Council. In the
longer term Coundil should aim to have an asset renewal ratio of at least 1.1.

Howevet, we advise that this mtio is a relatively new one and there is no historic trends to assess how
Council is performing in this area in the longer term. Further, with the revaluation of infrastructure
the accuracy of this ratio is also expected to improve in 2010.

Ovenall the financial indicators show that Council’s financial standing is sound in the short temm.

The increase in current cash and investments reflected in the Balance Sheet is also evident in the
following table extracted from the Cash Flow Statement.

CAREDAAOIIEMISN TS Al Vi

M=

$'000 $'000 %%
CASH INFLOWS
Operating Receipts 16,416 14,769 11.2%
Proceeds from Asscts Sales 415 246 68.7%
Net receipt of rereement lizune bonds 196 437 -55.1%
Proceeds from investmenti 200 417 -52.0%
Proceeds from Borrowings 310 192 61.5%
TOTAL RECEIPTS 17,537 16,061 9.2%
CASH OUTFLOWS
Opemnting Payments 11,935 11,956 0.2%
Purchase of investmicnts 2,625 215 186.9%
Purchase of Assets 3,562 1,170 204.4%
Repayment of Loans 177 386 -54.1%
TOTAL PAYMENTS 18,299 14,427 26.8%
TOTAL CASH MOVEMENT 762 1,634 -146.6%
Total Cash & Investments on Hand 6,866 5,294 29.7%

Cash outflows for Purchase of Assets included road and bridge construction totalling $2m. This
compates to the $0.7m annual rate of depreciation of these assets. In asscssing the replacement rate
of depteciating assets it is also important to note that Special Schedule No.7, which is an ugaudited
statement prepared in conjunction with the financial report, discloses that the cstimated cost to bring
road and bridges to 4 “satisfactosly’” standard is $2.8m.

Coundil has reviewed its depreciation useful lives for infrastructure assets (roads and bridges) in the
2009 financial year. This will provide more certainty regarding the level of depreciation expense for
2010 and Council will be able to obtain a better understanding of its abilitics to fund infrastructure in
the longer term.,

Forsyths
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SPECIAL PURPOSE REPORTS

Council is required to report the financial results of identified Business Units in accordance with
National Competition Policy guidelines. The reports are known as Special Purpose Finaacial Reports
and are subject to audit. Council has identified Water, Sewerage, private works and McMaugh
Gardens Hostel as Category 2 Business Units.

WATER SUPPLY FUNCTION

The Special Purpose Financial Reports disclose that the Water Supply function recorded an operating
deficit (before capital funding) of 120,000 after allowing for depreciation of $52,000.

The Net Cutrent Asset position records a positive balance of $610,000. This surplus plus the fact
that it has minimal debt, indicates a sound financial position to meet operstional requirements given
the size of the fuaction and the water infrastructure condition (per unaudited Special Schedule 7)
being of “satisfactory” standard.

SEWERAGE SERVICES

This function recorded an operating surplus (before capital funding) of $60,000 after allowing for
depreciation of §$14,000.

The Net Current Assets position show a surplus of $725,000. Given the size of the operations, the
minimal level of debt and the sewer infrastructure condition (per unaudited Special Schedule 7) being
of “satisfactory” standard, the sewerage fanction it in 2 sound financial position.

MCMAUGH GARDENS HOSTEL

The Special Putpose Financial Reports disclose that McMangh Gardens Hostel recorded an operating
surplus of $180,000 for the 2008 year compared to the deficit of $365,000 in the pror year. ‘This
result is after depreciation expense of $44,000.

The net current asset position is a surphus of $52,000 after allowing for resident’s bonds amounting to
$1,275,000. Therefore the Hostel as at 30 June 2009 had a small cash reserves to fund its operations,
ocutside of bond commitments. Council needs to focus on continued cost control at the Hostel to
improve its financial position aad reduce its potential impact on Council’s peneral fund.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AND OUTLOOEK FOR 2010

Note 23 to the accounts records “Events occurring after Balance Sheet Date”. This note rmakes
reference to continued rurmoil surrounding Lehman Brothers who filed for bankruptey and current
legal challenges in order to recover CDO funds which are highly likely to default or have already
defeulted. It is unclear at the date of this report the ultimate affect on the recoverable value of
investment's Conncil holds with Lehman’s valued at $0.3m as at 30 June 2009,

At the time of this report it is impossible to assess the impact on the value of investments, due to the

lack of macket evidence and ongoing legal action. We however, believe that a significant portion of
“book” losses recorded to date (over $1.1m) will convert ta actual losses in the coming years.

Forsyths
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Note 23 also discloses that Walcha and Uralla have chosen to leave the NESAC alliance post year
end This may have a significant impact on Council's longer term finances as it seeks to re-establish
its own IT and finance capabilities and it reduces Council’s ability 10 find cost reductions in the
future which the NESAC Alliance may have delivered in the longer term.

GENERAL
Limitation of audit opinion

Since July 2007, global financial markets have continued to experence 2 period of high volatility led
by events in the US housing market, particularly sub prime loans, which has impacted the value,
recoverabiity, liquidity, cash flows and rates of return of many financial assets including
Collateralised Debt Obligations (CDOs), Equity Linked Notes (ELNs) and certain other Managed
Funds.

At 30 June 2009, Council’s investment portfolio totaled $5.4 million (2008: $3.1 million) and included
securities totaling §0.8 million thar have been impacted by this market volatility. The impact on
individual securitics varies depending on their degree of exposure to affected markets.

At 30 June 2009, Couacil’s investment portfolio included CDO securities totaling $0.3 million (2008:
$0.6 million). Many of theae securitics do not have market values that are independently quoted and
they are not widely traded. Independent market valuations are not readily available and in many
cases, values are assessed based on estimates from external valuers and/or evahuation models for
which there is limited market evidence available to wverify theit reasonablencss in the current
economic environment. Further, the ongoing volatlity of financial markets creates greater
uncertainty in the valuation process and determination of future cash fows that can be attributed to
these securitics.

These circumstances have resulted in our inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
satisfy ourselves a5 to the fair value and recoverability of $0.3 million of Council’s total investment
portfolio. The maximum impact on the opceating surplus and net assets is the carrying amount of
these investments.

We have therefore qualified our audit opinion in relation to CDO investment valuations for the 2009
financial statemnents.

Inftastructure revaluation

It is pleasing that Council has completed the revaluation of its roads, bridges and footpath
infrastructure well before the deadline of June 2010 financial reports. We do note that Council needs
to review these assets residual values to ensure depreciation cxpense for 2010 is accurate. We have
been advised rhis will be completed before June 2010.

Reporting obligations under the Local Government Act

We report that Council’s systems and records have been well maintained during the year and the

audited financial statements will be submitted to the Department of Local Government within the
prescribed time provide for in Division 2 of the Local Government Act 1993.

Forsyths
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Matters of a technical nature have been documented in a managemeat letter to the General Manager.

We take this opportunity of thanking the General Manager and his stafF for their co-operation and
assistance during the course of the audit.

Under scction 419 of the Local Government Act 1993, Council is required to give public notice of a
Council meeting for the purpose of presenting the audited financial statements and the suditor's
report. A principal of our firm is available to attend this meeting to address any questions in respect
of the audit report or the conduct of the audit.

Youes faithfully
Forsyths Business Services Pty Ltd

AR et

Paul R Cornall
Principal

Forsyths
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 June 2009

STATEMENT BY COUNCILLORS AND MANAGEMENT
MADE PURSUANT TO THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT
CODE OF ACCOUNTING PRACTICE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING

The attached special purpose Financial Statements have peen drawn up in accordance with the
Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting and the

« NSW Govemment Policy Statement “Application of Nalional Competition Policy to Local
Government”

e Department of Local Government guidelines “Pricing & Costing for Council Businesses: A
Guide to Compelitive Neutrality”.

s The Departmeni of Energy, Utilities and Sustainability "Best Rractice Management of Water
Supply and Sewerags” guidelines.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, these reports

» Present fairly the financial position and operating result for each of Council's declared
Business Units for the year, and

s Accord with Council's accounting and other records

We are not aware of any matter that would render the reparts false or misleading in any way.

R .
Councillor R Filmer Courtcillor R. Spreadborough
MAYOR DEPUTY MAYOR
Mr T. P. O'Connor (Chartered Accountant) Mr T. P. Q'Connor {Chartered Accountant)
GENERAL MANAGER RESPONSIBLE ACCOUNTING OFFICER
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Special Purpese Financlal Reports

URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

INCOME STATEMENT

WATER SUPPLY BUSINESS ACTIVITY

for the year ended 30th June 2009

INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Access Charges
User Charges
Fees
Interest Received
Grants & Contributions - Operating
Gain on Disposal of Assels
TOTAL
EXPENSES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Employee Costs
Materials & Conlracts
Depreciation & Amortisation
Loss on Investments
Other Operating Expenses
TOTAL
CONTINUING OPERATIONS RESULT BEFORE
CAPITAL AMOUNTS

Granls & Contributions - Capital
SURPLUS {DEFICIT) BEFORE TAX

Corporate Taxatlon Equivalent
SURPLUS (DEFICIT} FOR YEAR

Add: Accumulated Surplus brought forward
Adjustments for amounts unpaid
Fair Value Adjustmetns
ACCUMULATED SURFPLUS

RATE OF RETURN ON CAPITAL
NOTIONAL SUBSIDY FROM COUNCIL

Calculation of Dividend Payable during next
financial year

Swrplus after tax

Less: Capital grants & contribs from LWUs
Surplus for dividend calculation purposes

Dividend calculated from surplus

Notes

This Statement is to be read In conjunction with the attached Notes.

2009 2008 2007
'000 000 000
328 313 248
231 262 195
- - 3
15 83 55
13 13 13
81 - -
668 671 514
376 376 427
241 254 228
52 50 150
c 328 .
119 - .
788 1,008 805
(120) (337) (291)
{120) (337) (291)
120) (@37 (291)
8,487 8,738 5,329
- 86 3,700
8,367 8,487 8,738
— A —
NIL Nil Nil
A N/A N/A
-120 -337 -291
13 13 13
0 0 0
0 0 0
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Spacial Purpose Financial Reporis
URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL
INCOME STATEMENT
SEWERAGE BUSINESS ACTIVITY
for the year ended 30th June 2000
Notes 2009 2008 2007
'000 ‘000 '000
INCOME FROM CONTINUNG OPERATIONS
Access Charges 423 4056 382
User Charges 14 28 40
Liquld Trade Waste Charges 10 12 -
Interest Received 4 68 7
Grants & Contributions - Operaling 19 19 20
Gain on Disposal of Assets 81 - -
TOTAL 551 532 449
EXPENSES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Employee Costs 217 242 173
Materials & Contracts 138 164 92
Borrowing Costs 2 - -
Depreciation & Amortisalion 14 16 167
Loss on Investmetns - 327 -
Other Operating Expenses 119 - -
TOTAL 491 749 432
CONTINUING OPERATIONS RESULT BEFORE 80 217
CAPITAL AMOUNTS (ea) L
Grants & Conlributions - Capital - - 57
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) BEFORE TAX 60 (217) 74
Corporate Taxation Equivalent 1 18 - 5
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) FOR YEAR 42 217 62
Add: Accumulated Profits brought forward 4,997 5,185 2,117
Adjustments for amounts unpaid
Fair Value Adjustmetns 1 29 2,994
Debl Guarantee Fae retalned - -
Corporate Tax Equlvalent retained 18 - 5
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS 5,057 4,997 5,185
RATE OF RETURN ON CAPITAL 1 0.85% NiL 0.26%
NOTIONAL SUBSIDY FROM COUNCIL 1 N/A N/A N/A
Calculation of Dividend Payable during next
financial year
Surplus after tax 42 =217 69
Less: Capilal grants & contribs from LWUs 19 19 20
Surplus for dividend calcufation purposes 23 0 49
Dividend calculated from surplus 12 0 25
This Slatement is to be read In conjunction with the attached Notes.
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Tpeclal Purpose Financial Reporls

Notes

REVENUE FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Rates & Annual Charges
User Charges & Fees
Interest Receivad
Grants & Contributlons - Operaling
Gain on Disposal of Assels
Other Operating Revenues

TOTAL
EXPENSES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Employee Cosis
Maierials & Contracts
Borrowing Cosls
Depreciation & Amortisalion
Other Operating Expenses
Fair Value Adjusiments

TOTAL

CONTINUING OPERATIONS RESULT
BEFORE CAPITAL AMOUNTS

Grants & Contributions - Capital
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) BEFORE TAX

Corporale Taxatlon Equivalent 2
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) FOR YEAR

Add: Accumulated Profits brought lorward
Corporate tax equivalent
Revalualion Adjustmetns

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
RATE OF RETURN ON CAPITAL 2
NOTIONAL SUBSIDY FROM COUNCIL 2

URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

INCOME STATEMENT BY BUSINESS ACTIVITIES
for the year ended 30th June 2009

BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

Private Works McMaugh Gardens
'000 ‘000
2009 2008 2009 2008
166 862 556 531
- = 28 58
130 - 1,387 1,074
- - 27 AN
o - 10 -
296 862 2,028 1,694
159 303 1,282 1,297
207 597 428 504
- - 6 6
- o 44 38
o 4 88 106
- - - 108
386 904 1,848 2,059
{70} (42) 180 (365)
(70 (42) 180 (365)
- - 54 -
{70) 42) 126 (365)
. - 3,265 3,095
- o 54 -
- o - 535
{70) (42) 3,445 3,265
NIL NIL 5.26% NIL
N/A N/A NiA N/A

This Statement Is {o be read In conjunction with ihe attached Noles.
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Special Purpose Financial Reporls
URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL
BALANCE SHEET
WATER SUPPLY BUSINESS ACTIVITY
as at 30th June 2009
Notes 2009 2008
‘000 ‘000
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash & cash equivalents 408 441
Receivables 206 218
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 614 659
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
" Receivables 109 162
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment 16,908 16,454
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 17,017 16,616
TOTAL ASSETS 17,631 17,275
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables 4 3
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 4 3
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables - -
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 4 3
NET ASSETS $ 17,627 17,272
EQUITY
Accumulated Surplus 8,367 8,487
Asset Revaluation Reserve 9,260 8,785
TOTAL EQUITY $ 17,627 17,272
This Statement is to be read In conjunction with ihe attached Notes
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Special Purpose Financial Repaorls

URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

BALANCE SHEET

SEWERAGE BUSINESS ACTIVITY

as at 30th June 2009
Notes 2009 2008
'000 '000
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash & cash equivalents 725 719
Receivables 59 73
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS ~ 764 792
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment 7,294 7,056
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 7,294 7,056
TOTAL ASSETS 8,078 7,848
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables 47 46
Interest bearing liabililies 12 -
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 50 36
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
interest bearing liabilities - 15
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES - 15
TOTAL LIABILITIES 59 61
NET ASSETS $ 8,019 7,787
EQUITY
Accumulated Surplus 5,057 4,997
Asset Ravaluation Reserve 2,962 2,790
TOTAL EQUITY $ 8,019 7,787

This Statement is to be read In conjunction with the attached Notes
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Special Purpose Financial ﬁaporls

URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

BALANCE SHEET by BUSINESS ACTIVITIES
as at 30th June 2009

CURRENT ASSETS
Investments
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Receivables
Property, Plant & Equipment
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables
Interest bearing liabilities
Provisions
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest bearing liabilities
Provisions
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Accumulated Sumplus
Asset Revaluation Reserve
TOTAL EQUITY

Notes

$

BUSINESS ACTIVITIES
Privale Works McMaugh Gardens
‘000 ‘000
2009 2008 2009 2008
- 1,404 1,185
- 1,404 1,185
- - 106
- 3,538 3,551
- 3,538 3,657
- 4,942 4,84
- 1,275 1,185
- 3 2
- 74 221
- 1,352 1,408
- 83 86
o 62 a3
- 145 169
- 1,487 1,677
- 3,445 3,265
- 3,445 3,265
- 3,445 3,265 |

Thls Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE

SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL REPORTS
for the year ended 30 June 2009

Note 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. The Speclal Purpose Financlal Reports
Thesa financial statements are a Special Purpose Financial Report prepared for use by the Council, the
Deparment of Local Govenment, and the Department of Energy, Utilities and Sustainability. They have
been prepared to report the resulls of business units delermined by Council in accordance with the
requirements of National Competition Policy guldelines, and the specific requirements relaiing lo Best
Practice Management of water and sewar business units.

In preparing these reports, each business unit has been viewed as a separale unit, and accordingly
transaclions between different business unlts, and between business unlis and other Council operations,
have not been eliminated.

2, Basls of Accounting
21 Compliance
The financlal reports comply with the Local Government Code of Accounting Practlce and
Flnancial Reporting and the Local Government Asset Accounting Manual, and with the principles
of the June 1996 NSW Govemment Policy Statement “Application of National Competition Policy
to Local Government”, the Departmant of Local Government's July 1987 guidelines “Pricing &
Costing for Council Businesses: A Guide to Compstilive Neutrality” and the Department of Enargy,
Utillties and Suslalnabllity's May 2004 guidelines "Best-Practice Management of Water Supply and
Sewerage”.

Except where direcled to the contrary by the above documents, the financial report also complies
with all applicable Australlan Accounting Standards and professional pronouncements, and Is
based on information conslistent with that forming the basis of Council's general purpose Annual
Financlal Statements for the year.

2.2 Basls
The financial report has been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and, except where
speclfically indicaled In these Notes or in the Notes to the general purpose Annual Financial
Statements, in accordance with the historical cost convention.

3. Natlonal Compstition Policy
In accordance with the framework set out in the June 1996 NSW Government Policy Statement “Application
of Natlonal Competition Policy to Local Government” and cther guidslines and decumentation In relation Lo
this matter, Councll has declared that the following are to be considered as Business Unlts:

Uralla Shire Comblned Water Supplies
Comprising the whole of the operations and assets of the water supply systems. As the total
annual operating revenues do not exceed $2,000,000, it Is defined as a “Category 2° Business
Unit.

Uralla Shire Sewerage Service
Comprising the whole of the operations and assets of lhe sewarage reticulation and treatment
system serviclng the area. As the total annual operating revenues do not exceed $2,000,000, it Is
defined as a "Category 2° Business Unit.

The Department of Local Government's July 1997 guidelines “Pricing & Costing for Council
Businesses: A Guide fo Competitive Neutrality” oulline the process for identifying and allocating
costs lo activiies and provide & slandard of disclosure requirements. These disclosures are
reflected in Council's pricing andfor financial reporting systems and include taxation equivalents,
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2009

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies {cont)

31

3.2

3.3

34

35

3.6

council subsidies, rate of retum on investmenis in business units and dividends paid. The
Department of Energy, Ulllities and Sustainability's May 2004 guidelines “Best-Praclice
Management of Water Supply and Sewerage" include specific requirements relating to the
calculalion and payment of “dividends” by water supply and sewerage business units.

Taxation Equivalent Payments

Councll does not pay cerain taxes and duties that are paid by equivalant private sector operations,
but is liable for others. The Spaclal Purpose Financial Reports disclose the effect of imputing
these taxes lo the declared business units at the several rates lhat would have applied to
equlvalent privaie sector operations. From 30 June 2004 the Departiment of Energy, Utilities and
Sustainability's May 2004 guidelines "Best-Practice Management of Watsr Supply and Sewerage”
require that Imputed amounis be pald into the general funds of the Council where it may be
applied for any parmitted purpose of the Local Government Act 1993 (as amended).

Details of the rates of each tax or duty applicable 1o each different business unit are sst out in the
table forming Item 7 of this Note. The narration "applies” indicates that the tax or duty has in fact
been paid to the taxing aulhority by the Business Unit, and that these costs have been included in
actual Operating Expenses, and the narration “various” indicates that Council has based the
calculation of imputed tax on the differing rates of tax or duty applicable to different purchases.

Councll Rates, Charges & Fees

Gouncil rates have been imputed in relation to all non-rateabls land, and applied in relation to all
rateable land, owned or exclusively used by all business unlts. Annual and User Charges, and
Regulatory and Other Fees, have baen applied in relation to all services supplied to business units
by Council or other business units.

Loan & Debt Guarantee Fees

The debt guarantee fee is designed to ensure that Council's business units face equlvalent
commercial borrowing costs to private sector competitors. In order to calculate ihe debt guarantee
fees, Councll has determined the average differential between actual and commerclal borrowing
rates for each business unit.

Corporate Taxation Equivalent

In accordance with the Code of Local Government Accounting Practice and Financlal Reporting,
Income taxation has been calculated on the Operating Result before Capital Amounts disclosed In
the Statements of Financlal Performance of the Special Purpose Financial Reports. No aliowance
has been made for non-deductible items, timing diffarences or carmied forward losses. Australlan
Accounting Standard AASB 112 “Income Taxes® has not been applied.

Dividends Pald

In accordance with National Competition Policy guidelines, it is expected that business units will
pay dividends to its owner, Councll, equivalent to those pald by private sector compelitors. In
accordance with the Code of Local Government Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting, the
rate of dividend paid has been expressed as a percentage of the Change In Net Assets Resulling
from Operations after Taxation.

Councll Is permitted, but not required, to pay a dividend to the general funds of the Councll from
surpluses generated by water supply and sawerage operations. The maximum amount of such
dividend permltied under the ‘Best-Practice Management of Water Supply and Sewerage®
guidelines is set out at the fool of the relevant Statements of Financlal Performance. Actual
payment of the dividend is subject to compliance with the procedures set out In the guidelines.

Return on Investment (Rate of Return)

The Policy statement states that Category 1 businesses “would be expected to generate a rate of
retum on capital funds employed that is comparable to rates of return for private businesses
operating in a similar field." In accordance with the Code of Accounting Practice, the rate of retumn
on monopoly businesses such as water and sewerage services has been set at an amouni
sufficienl to cover costs and replace assets needed to malntain services. For compelitive marksets,
the rate of return has been set equal to or betler than the retum on Commonwsalth 10 year bonds.

In accordance with the Code of Accounting Pracfice, the rate of return has been calculated as the
Operating Result before Capital Amounts plus Interest Expense exprassed as a percentage of the
carmying value of Property, Plant & Equipment al the reporting date.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2009

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont)

3.7 Notional Subsidy from Council
Govemnment policy requires that subsidies provided to customers and the funding of those
subsidies must be explicilly disclosed. Subsidies occur where Council provides services on a less
than cost recovery basis, or accepts a lower rate of return on ils investment in the business unit
than would be acceplable to a private sector compatitor.

In accordance wilh the Code of Accounting Practice, this amount has been calculaled as the dollar
diffarence batween the required and actual rates of retum.

4, Special Rate Funds
The Local Government Act 1993 (as amended) requires that moneys ralsed by way of Special Rates {or for
Domestic Wasle Management) be used only for those purposes, except for “dividends" payable in
accordance with the “Best-Practice Management of Water Supply and Sewerage” guidelines, which also
impose limits on the amounts payable. Accordingly, /mputed amounts in excess of the permitted limits hava
been retainsd in those funds, and added back to Accumulated Surplus.

For Businass Units not involving Special Rate Funds, imputed amounts have been transferred to Council's
General Fund and are avallable to Council for utllisation for other purposas.

All such amounts have been eliminated in the course of preparation of the Council's general purpose
Annual Financial Statemants.

5. Other Accounting Pollcles and Notes
Other accounting policies relating to the determination of revenues and expenses, and assets and llabilities,
not speclfically referred to above are reported In Note 1 to the Council's Annual Financial Statements, and
should be read In conjunction with this Note. Note references in the Stalemenls of Financial Performance
of Business Activities and the Statemenl of Financlal Position of Business Aclivities that are prefixed "A”
refer to the Notes to the Annual Financial Statements.

6. Rounding
In accordance with the Code of Accounting Practice all amounts shown in thess statements are In
Australian currency and, other than Notes 2 & 3, have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars:
amounls in Notes 2 & 3 are shown in whole dollars to meet the requirements of the Department of Energy,
Utilities and Sustainability.

7. Natlonal Gompetition Pollcy Notlonal Payments
The table forming part of thls Note immediately follows.
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Special Purpose Financial Reporls

URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE SPECIAL PURPOSE STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30th June 2009

Note 2 - BEST PRACTICE MANAGEMENT DISCLOSURES

- WATER SUPPLY

Values shown In this Note are expressed in WHOLE DOLLARS

Calculation and Payment of Tax-Equivalents
() Calculated Tax Equivalents
(i) No of assessments multiplied by $3/assessment
(i) Amounts payable for Tax Equivalents
(v} Tax Equivalents paid

Dividend from Surplus
()  50% of Surplus before Dividends
(Calculaled in accordance with Besi Praclice Management for Water Supply and Sewerage
guldalines.)
i No of assessments multiplied by $30/assessment, less tax equivalent
(i charges/assessment
o+ Cumulative Surplus before Dividends for 3 years to 30 June 2008, less
i cumulative dividends paid for 2 years to 30 June 2007
) Maximum Dividend from Surplus
(17) (least of (), (i) and () )
{v) Dividend paid from Surplus

Required Qutcomes for 6 Criteria
()  Completion of Strategic Business Plan (including Financial Plan)
(il Pricing with full cost-recovery, without significani cross subsidies
(Iltem 2(a} In Table 1 on page 18 of Besl practice guidelines)
Complying charges (Item 2(b) In Tabla 1)
DSP with Commercial Developer Charges (Item 2(e}) in Table 1)
If Dual Water Supplles, Complying Charges (item 2(g) in Table 1)
(i) Sound Water Conservalion & Demand Management Implemented
(iv) Sound Drought Management implemented
(v) Complete Performance Reporting Form (by 15 September each year)
(vi) Complete Integrated Water Cycle Management Evaluation
(vii) Complete and implement Integrated Water Cycle Management Strategy

National Weter Initiative (NWI) Financial Performance Indicators

~nwiFt  Totel Revenue (Water) §'000
wwiFd  Residential Revenue from Usage Charges (Water) %

NwiFe  Written Down Replacement Cost of Fixed Assels (Waler) $'000
~wiF11 Operaling Cost (OMA) (Water) $000
nwiFte Capital Expenditure (Water) $000
~wiF17 Economic Real Rate of Return (Water) %

NWiF20 Capital Works Grants (Waler) $000

46,880
0
0

NO
NO

YES
YES

YES
YES
NO
NO

578
41.32
15,427
617
30
-0.57
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Special Purpose Financial Reporis

URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE SPECIAL PURPOSE STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30th June 2009

Note 3 - BEST PRACTICE MANAGEMENT DISCLOSURES

- SEWERAGE

Values shown in this Note are expressed In WHOLE DOLLARS

Calculatlon and Payment of Tax-Equivalents
(i) Calculated Tax Equivalents
(i)  No of assessments multiplied by $3/assessment
i) Amounts payable for Tax Equivalenis
(lesser of (i) and (i) }
(iv) Tax Equivalents paid

Dividend from Surplus

{iy 50% of Surplus before Dividends
(Calculated in accordance with Besl Practice Management for Water Supply and Sewerage
guidelines,)
No of assessments multiplied by $30/assessment, less tax equivalent
charges/assessment
... Cumulative Surplus before Dividends for 3 years to 30 June 2008, less
(if) cumulative dividends paid for 2 years (o 30 June 2007
(iv) Maximum Dividend from Surplus

(least of (i), (i) and (jil) )

(v) Dlvidend paid from Surplus

(i)

Required Outcomes for 4 Criteria
()  Completion of Strategic Business Plan (including Financial Plan)
(i) Pricing with full cost-recovery, without significant cross subsidies
(ltem 2(a) In Table 1 on page 18 of Basl practica guidelines)
Complying charges (a) Residential (item 2(¢) in Table 1)
{b) Non-Residential (Item 2(c) In Tabla 1)
{c) Trade Waste (item 2(d) In Table 1)
DSP with Commercial Developer Charges (lem 2(e) In Table 1)
Liquid Trade Waste Approvals & Policy {ltem 2{f} In Table 1)
(i) Complete Performance Reporting Form (by 15 September each year)
(iv) Complete Integrated Water Cycle Management Evaluation
{v) Complete and implement Integrated Water Cycle Management Strategy

Natlonal Water Initiative (NWI) Financial Performance Indicators

nwF2  Total Revenue (Sewerage) $'000
nwi F10 Written Down Replacement Cost of Fixed Assels (Sewerages) $000
~nwirF12 Operaling Cost (Sewerage) $'000
wwi F1s  Gapital Expenditura (Sewerage) $'000
~w F18  Economic Real Rate of Return (Sewerage) %
w1 F27  Capital Works Grants (Sewar) dooo
M F3  Total Income (Waler & Sewerage) $000
nwFs  Revenue from Communily Service Obligalions (Water & Sewerage) %
nw Fre Capital Expenditure (Water & Sewerage) £000
nwiF1s Economic Real Rate of Return (Water & Sewerags) %
NMIF20 Dividend (Water & Sewerage) 3000
nwi F21 Dividend Payout Ralio (Waler & Sewerags) %
NwiF22 Net Debt fo Equily (Water & Sewerage) %
NWI F23 Interest Cover {Water & Sewerags) times
NwiF2d4 Nel Profit after Tax (Water & Sewerage) $'000
nwiFzs  Community Service Obligations (Water & Sewsrags) $'000

12,000

30,480

470
6,059
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Forsyths

Chartered Accountants

Armidaie

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT 92 Rusden Street

Report on the special purpose financial reports o B";‘;‘Lw 5o

P +61 26773 8400

£ +6126772 9957

e armidale@forsyths.com.au
SCOPE Foetpike Bosmem Scrvees Py La!

ABN 6 12781401

To Uralla Shire Council

We have audited the special purpose financial reports of Uralla Shire Coundil for the year
ended 30 June 2009 comprising the Statement by Councillors and Management, Income
Statement of Business Activities, Balance Sheet by Business Activitics, and accompanying Notes
to the Accounts. The financial statements include the accounts of the business activities of the
Council and the entities it controlled at the year’s end or from time to time during the year.

Councils’ responsibility for the financial report

The Council is responsible for the prepamtion and fair presentation of the financial report and
have determined that the accounting policies desctibed in Note 1 to the finandial statements,
which form part of the financial report, are approptiate to meet the requirements of the
Department of Local Government and Council The Councils’ responsibility also includes
establishing and maintaining intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the drcumatances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. No opinion
is expressed as to whether the accounting policies used, as described in Note 1, are appropriate to
meet the needs of the Councl or the Depariment of Local Government. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we
comply with relevant cthical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and petform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from materal
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedutes to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of matcral misstatement of the financial report, whether due
to fraud or emor. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal control
relevant to the Council's preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to
design zudit procedures that ate appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the pucpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council's intemal control  An audit also
incledes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as evaluating the overall preseatation of the
financial report.

Knowledge with integrity
Lisbiliy limitrd by 2 srheme apprwved under the Profmssamal Standards 1egisdation

ARMIDALE | COONABARABRAN | GUNNEDAH | TAMWORTH



The special purpose financial reports have been prepared for distribution to the Council and the
Department of Local Govemntnent for the purpose of fulfilling the requirements of National
Competition Policy reporting. We disclaim any assumption of responsibility for any reliance on
this report or on the financial statements to which it relates to any person other than the Council
or the Department of Local Govemment or for any purpose other than for which the report was

prepared.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approprate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

INDEPENDENCE

In conducting our audit, we followed applicable independence requirements of Australian
professional ethical pronouncements.

AUDIT OPINION
In our opinion, the Spedal Purpose Financial Reports of the Uralla Shire Council for the year
ended 30 June 2009 are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with the

requirements of those applicable Accounting Standards detailed in Note 1 and the Local
Government Code of Accounting Practice and Finaneial Reporting,

/ey i

Foryythe Business Services Pty Led

Paul R Comall
Principal

29 October 2009
111 Faulkner Street Armidale

Liability limited by the Accountants Scheme, approved under the Professional Slandards Act 1994 (NSW)"
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

SPECIAL SCHEDULE NO 1
NET COST OF SERVICES
for the year ended 30th June 2009

$'000
Expenses from Income from
conlinuing operations conlinuing operations B ERRIT el SISy
Function or Actlvity Group Non-capital Capiltal Group Nel Group
Expenses Tolals revenues revenues Totals Cost Tolals
GOVERNANCE 376 - - 376
376 - 376
IADMINISTRATION
orporate Support (4 342 7 (417)
ngineering & Works {353) 15 284 (632)
er Support Services - - - -
(357) 692 (1,049)
UBLIC ORDER & SAFETY
tatutory Conlribution - Fire Service Levy - - - -
ire Protection - Other 219 26 94 99
imal Control a5 7 - 28
Beach Control - - = -
nforcement of Local Govt Regulations - - -
Emergency Services 2 = = 2
er . - .
256 127 129
HEALTH
dminisiration & Inspection 73 2 - 7
iImmunisalions - - -
Food Control - - - -
Insect’Vermin Control = - - .
Noxious Plants - - - 2
eallh Cenires - - - -
er S - - i
73 2 71
OMMUNITY SERVICES & EDUCATION
ministration - - = -
Famity Day Care - - - -
hild Care - - = .
outh Sarvices 10 1 - 9
ther Families & Children 7 - - 7
& Disabled 3,479 3,644 70 (2385)
igrant Services - - - -
boriginal Services 1,292 1,359 - (67)
er Community Services a7 99 8 {10)
Educatlon - - - -
4,885 5,181 (296”
OUSING & COMMUNITY AMENITIES
ousing - - - -
own Planning 348 127 - 221
Domestic Waste Managamenl 387 293 - o4
ther Waste Management 455 599 - (144)
treet Cleaning L, - . I
Othar Sanilation & Garbage o - - a
Dralnage - - - -
tormwater Management 30 27 - 3
nvironmental Protection 64 - - 64
blic Cemeteries A 16 - 15
blic Convenlences 54 - 20 34
ther Community Amenities - - - -
1,369 1,082 287
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

SPECIAL SCHEDULE NO 1 - NET COST OF SERVICES (cont)

Functlon or Aclivity

ATER SUPPLIES
SEWERAGE SERVICES

ECREATION & CULTURE

Other Cullural Services
Swimming Pools

porting Grounds

Parks & Gardens, Lakes
ther Sport & Recreatlon

Building Control

RANSPORT & COMMUNICATION
Urban Roads: Local

rban Roads: Regional

ealed Rural Roads: Local

led Rural Roads: Reglonal
Unsealed Rural Roads: Local

Unsealed Rural Roads: Reglonal

ridges - Urban Roads: Local

ridges - Urban Roads: Regional

ridges - Sealed Rural Roads: Local
ridges - Sealed Rural Roads: Regional
ridges - Unsealed Rural Roads: Local
idges - Unsealed Rural Roads: Regional

ater Transport

TA Works - State Roads
treel Lighting

ther

S ) Income from NET COST OF SERVICES)
continuing operations conlinuing operatiens
Group Non-capital Capital Group Net Group
Expenses Totals revenues revenues Totals Cost Totals
662 526 6 130
662 532 130
368 398 12 {42)
368 410 (42)
221 28 - 193
44 3 - 41
41 3 - 38
95 24 93 (22)
122 21 70 3
45 - 16 30
569 258 Khal
2 - - 2
2 - 2
175 - - 175
7 - - 7
869 425 10 434
982 728 287 (51)
1,169 - - 1,169
63 - o 63
4 - - 4
6 - - 6
287 - - 287
191 - 703 (512)
7 - - 7
B7 - 15 72
57 - - 57
68 [ - 62
286 38 - 247
4,238 2211 2,027
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

SPECIAL SCHEDULE NO 1 - NET COST OF SERVICES {cont)

Function or Activily

ECONOMIC AFFAIRS
(Camping Areas
Caravan Parks

ourism & Area Promolion

V Blackspol Program
Saleyards & Markels
Real Estate Davelopment
Commercial Nurseries

ther Business Underlakings

OTALS - FUNCTIONS

eneral Purpose Revenues

HNET OPERATING RESULT FOR YEAR

Expenses from Income from
confinuing operations conlinuing operalions WISIF Eeriel Bla cltss
Group Non-cagpital Capilal Group Nel Group
Expenses Totals revenues revenues Totals Cosl Totals
3 4 5 (1)
214 8 2 206
" - = 11
406 309 - a7
634 31 313
13,075 10,816 2,259
5,287 5,287
& 5,287 5,287
3,028
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

SPECIAL SCHEDULE NO 3
WATER SUPPLY OPERATIONS

(Gross including Internal Transactions)

for the year ended 30th June 2009

A. EXPENSES & REVENUES

EXPENSES
1.a. Management - Administration

b. - Engineering & Supervision

2 Operations

a. - Dams & Weirs - Operation Expenses
b. - Maintenance Expenses

c. - Mains - Operation Expenses

d. -Maintenance Expenses

8. - Reservoirs - Operation Expenses
f. - Maintenance Expenses

g. - Pumping Stations - Operation Expenses
h. - Energy Costs

I - Maintenance Expenses

l. - Treatment - Operation Expenses
k. - Chemical Costs

I - Maintenance Expenses
m. - Other - Operation Expenses

n. - Maintenance Expenses

o. - Purchase of Water

3.a. Depreciation - System Assets
b. - Plant & Equipment

4.a. Miscellaneous - Interest
- Revaluation decrements
b. - Other
- NCP Tax & Other Equivalents
5 Total Expenses

REVENUE

& Residential Charges

a - Access (inciuding rates)
b. - User Charges

7 Non-Residential Charges

a. - Access (including rates)
h. - User Charges

8 Extra Charges

g Interest
10 Other Income

11.a. Grants - Acquisition of Assets

b. - Pensioner Rebates
c. - Other

12.a. Confributions - Developer Charges
b. - Developer Provided Assets
c. - Other Contributions

13 Total Revenues

14 Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Assets
15 OPERATING RESULT

15a, Operating Resull before Grants for Acquisltion of Assets

2009
$'000
126
76

2008
$'000
135
98

328

1,008

313
262




URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

SPECIAL SCHEDULE NO 3 - WATER SUPPLY OPERATIONS (cont)

2009 2008
B. CAPITAL TRANSACTIONS $'000 $'000
Non - Operating Expenditure
16 Acquisition of Fixed Assets
a. - Subsidised Scheme - -
b, - Other New Systemn Assets - -
c. - Renewals 30 4
d. - Plant & Equipment -
17 Repayment of Debt
a. - Loans - -
b. - Advances - -
c. - Finance Leases - -
18 Transfers to Sinking Funds - -
19 Total Non-Operating Expenditure 30 4
Non-Operating Funds Employed
20 Proceeds from Disposal of Assels - -
21 Borrowlings Utllised
a - Loans - -
b. - Advances - -
c. - Finance Leases - -
22 Transfers from Sinking Funds - -
23 Total Non-Operating Funds Employed - =
C. RATES & CHARGES
24 Number of Assessments
a. - Residenlial {occupied) 1231
b. - Residential {unoccupied) 168
c. - Non-Residential {occupied) 116
d. - Non -Residential {unoccupied) 41
25 Number of ETs for which Daveloper Charges were ET
26 Total Amount of Pensioner Rebates 25 $'000

D. BEST PRACTICE ANNUAL CHARGES & DEVELOPER CHARGES
27 Annual Charges

a Does Councll hava best-praclice water supply annual charges and usage charges? @
If Yes, go to 28a.

If No, has Council removed land value from access charges (i.e. rates)

Cross subsidy from residenlial customers using less than allowance 0
c Cross subsidy to non-residential cusiomers 0
d Cross subsidy to large connections in unmetered supplies 0

2a Developer Charges

a Has Council completed a water supply Development Servicing Plan? @
b Total cross-subsidy in water supply developer charges 0

20 TOTAL OF CROSS SUBSIDIES

Councils which have nol yet implemented bast practice water supply pricing should disclose cross subsidies In
jtems 27b, 27¢ and 27d above. However, disclosure of cross-subsidies is N0t required where a Councll has
Implemented best practice pricing and Is phasing In such pricing over a period of 3 years.
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

SPECIAL SCHEDULE NO 4
WATER SUPPLY - NET ASSETS COMMITTED
{Gross including Internal Transactions)
for the year ended 30th June 2009

ASSETS
30 Cash and Investments
a. - Developer Charges
- Specific Purpose Grants
- Accrued Leave
- Unexpended Loans
- Sinking Funds
- Other
31 Receivables
a. - Specific Purpose Grants
b. - Rates & Availability Charges
c. - Other
32 Inventories
33 Property, Plant & Equipment
a. - System Assets
b. - Plant & Equipment
34 Other

-0 800

Current Non-Current Total

$'000 $'000 $'000

16,356 16,356
5562 552

35 Total Assets

614 17,017 17.631

LIABILITIES
38 Bank Overdraft
37 Creditors
38 Borrowings
a. - Loans
b. - Advances
c. - Finance Leases
39 Provisions

- Tax Equivalents

a. - Dividend
b, - Other

40 Total Liabilities

41 NET ASSETS COMMITTED

610 17,017 17,627

EQUITY
42 Accumulated Surpius
43 Asset Revaluation Reserve
44 Total Equity

45 Currant Replacemeni Cost of System Assets
48 Accumulated Current Cost Depreciation of System Assels
47 Written Down Current Cost of System Assets

8,367
9,260
17,627

22,942
7,515
15.427
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL
SPECIAL SCHEDULE NO 5
SEWERAGE SERVICE OPERATIONS
{Gross including Internal Transactions)
for the year ended 30th June 2009
A. EXPENSES & REVENUES 2009 2008
EXPENSES $'000 $'000
1.a. Management - Administration 124 104
b. - Engineering & Supervision 3 64
2 Operations & Maintenance Expenses
a. -Mains - Operation Expenses - -
b -Maintenance Expenses 30 40
c - Pumping Stations - Operalion Expenses - -
d - Energy Costs 2 2
e - Maintenance Expenses 8 15
f. - Treatment - Operation Expenses - -
g. - Chemical Costs 1 7
h - Energy Costs 41 36
I - Effluent Management o =
j - Biosolids Management 19 1
k - Maintenance Expenses 118 137
l. - Other - Operation Expenses - -
m. - Maintenance Expenses - -
3.a. Depreciation - System Assets 14 16
b. - Plant & Equipment - -
4.a. Miscellaneous - |nterest 2 -
- Revaluation decrements 119 327
b. - Other - -
- NCP Tax & Other Equivalents - -
5 Total Expenses 491 749
REVENUE
6 Residential Charges (induding rates) 423 405
7 Non-Residential Charges
a Access (including rates) - -
b User Charges 14 28
8 Trade Waste Charges
a Annual Fees - -
b User Charges 10 12
c. Excess Mass Charges & Re-Inspection Fees - -
9 Extra Charges 4 4
10 Interest - 64
11 Other Income - -
12.8. Grants - Acquisition of Assels - -
b. - Pensioner Rebates 19 19
c. - Other - -
13.a Contributions - Developer Charges - -
b. - Developer Provided Assets - -
c. - Other Contributions - -
14 Total Revenues 470 532
15 Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Assels 81
18 OPERATING RESULT 60 217
16.a. Operating Result before Grants for Acquisition of Assets 60 217
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

SPECIAL SCHEDULE NO 5 - SEWERAGE SERVICE OPERATIONS (cont}

2009 2008
B. CAPITAL TRANSACTIONS $'000 $'000
Non - Operating Expenditure
17 Acquisilion of Fixed Assets
a. - Subsidised Scheme - -
b. - Other New System Assets 51 30
c. - Renewals - -
d - Plant & Equipment - -
18 Repayment of Debt
a - Loans - -
b. - Advances - -
c. - Finance Leases - -
18 Transfers to Sinking Funds - -
20 Total Non-Operating Expenditure 51 30
Non-Operating Funds Employed
21 Proceeds of Disposal of Assets - -
22 Borrowings Utilised
2 - Loans - -
b. - Advances - -
c. - Finance Leases - -
23 Transfers from Sinking Funds - -
24 Total Non-Operating Funds Employed - -
C. RATES AND CHARGES
25 Number of Assessmants
a. - Residential (occupied) 856
b. - Resldentlal (unoccupied) 36
c. - Non-Residential (occupied) 112
d. - Non-Residential {unoccupied) 12
26 Number of ETs for which Developer Charges weare ET
27 Total Amount of Pensioner Rebates 37 $'000

D. BEST PRACTICE ANNUAL CHARGES & DEVELOPER CHARGES
28 Annual Charges
Does Council have best-practice sewerage annual charges, usage
a charges and trade waste fees and charges? YES
If Yes, go to 28a.

If No, has Council removed land value from access charges (i.e. rates) | I

b Cross subsidy to non-residential customers 0

c Cross subsidy to trade waste dischargers 0
29 Daveloper Charges

a Has Council completed a sewerage Development Servicing Plan? [Fo]

b Tolal cross-subsidy in sewerage developer charges 0

30 TOTAL OF CROSS SUBSIDIES -

Councils which have not yet Implemented besi praclice sewerage pricing and trade wasle pricing should disclose
cross subsidies in ilems 28b and 28¢c above. Mowaver, disclosure of cross-subsidles is NOt required where a
Coundil has implemenled best practice sewerage and llquid trade waste pricing and &5 phasing In such pricing

nvor a narnd nf 3 veare

Page S10



URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL
SPECIAL SCHEDULE NO 6
SEWERAGE SERVICES - NET ASSETS COMMITTED
(Gross including Internal Transactions)
for the year ended 30th June 2009
Current Non-Current Total
ASSETS $'000 $'000 $'000
31 Cash and Inveslmenls
a, - Developer Charges - - -
b. - Specific Purpose Grants - - -
c. - Accrued Leave - - -
d. - Unexpended Loans - - -
8. - Sinking Funds = = o
f. - Other 725 - 725
32 Receivahles
a. - Specific Purpose Grants - - -
b. - Rates & Availability Charges 56 - 56
c. - Other 3 - 3
33 Inventories - - -
a4 Property, Plant & Equipment
a. - System Assets 6,959 6,959
b. - Plant & Equipment 335 335
35 Other - - -
3¢ Total Assets 784 7,294 8,078
LIABILITIES
a7 Bank Qverdraft - -
38 Creditors 47 - 47
39 Borrowings
a. - Loans 12 - 12
b. - Advances - - -
c. - Finance Leases - - -
40 Provisions
- Tax Equivalents - =
a - Dividend - -
b. - Other - - -
41 Total Liabllities 59 - 50
42 NET ASSETS COMMITTED 725 7,294 8,019
EQUITY
43 Accumulated Surplus 5,057
44 Asset Revaluation Reserve 2 962
45 Total Equity 8,019
46 Currenl Replacement Cost of Sysiem Assels 7,731
47 Accumulated Current Cost Depreciation of System Assets 772
48 Written Down Current Cost of Systemn Assels 6,859
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URALLA SHIRE COUNCIL

SPECIAL SCHEDULE NO 7 - CONDITION OF PUBLIC WORKS (cont)
as at 30th June 2009

"SATISFACTORY" CONDITION OF PUBLIC ASSETS

In assessing the condition of Public Assets Council has had regard to the condition, function
and location of each asset, based on the original design standard. Changes in standards or
proposed or potential enhancements to the existing asset design standard have been ignored
(Code p A702). Assels within each Asset Category have been assessed on an overall basis,
recognising that an average standard of "satisfactory" may be achieved even though certain
assefs may be above or below fhat standard on an individual basis.

Council recognises that the standard that it considers to be “satisfactory” may be different from
that adopted by other Councils.

The information contained in this Schedule comprises accounting estimates formulated in
accordance with the NSW Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial
Reporting. Nothing contained within this Schedule may be taken to be an admission of any
liability to any person under any circumstance.

ASSET CONDITION
The following condition codes have been used in this Schedule.

Newly constructed

Over 5 years old but fully maintained in "as new" condition
Good condition

Average condition

Partly worn - beyond 50% of economig life.

Worn but serviceable

Poor - replacement required

~S Dk N =
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